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Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CISC

Statement Of Management's Responsibifities For The Preparation And Approval
Of Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2021

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that present fairly the financial
position of Demir Kyrgyz international Bank [“the Bank”} as of 31 December 2021, and the results of its
operations, cash flows and changes in shareholders’ equity for the year then ended, in compliance with
international Financial Reporting Standards [IFRS").

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for:

«  Properly selecting and applying accounting policies;

e Presenting information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;

*  Providing additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in 1FRSs are insufficient
ta enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the
Bank’s financial position and financial performance; and

+  Making an assessment of the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern.

Management is also responsible for:

*  Designing, implementing and maintaining an effertive and sound systern of internal controls, throughout
the Bank;

*  Maintaining adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Bank’s transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Bank, and which enable
them to ensure that the financial statements of the Bank comply with IFRS;

Maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with the Kyrgyz Republic iegislation and IFRS;
Taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Bank: and
Preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 were approved by the Management
on 28 March 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

M . Sevk Sarilar

. Zulfiya Djakipova
Ge\'neral anager

i Chief Accountant

28 March 2022
Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic

28 March 2022
Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Demir Kyrgyz Internationai Bank CJ5C
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC (the
“Bank”}), which comprise the statement of financial position as at

31 December 2021, the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income,
staternents of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for 2021, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting pelicies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2021, and its financial perfarmance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ["IFRSs").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {“I5As"}.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Stetements section of our report. We are
independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the IESBA Code” ) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the
Kyrgyz Republic, and we have fulfilled our other ethical respansihilities in accordance with
these requirements and the |ESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a bas’s for our opinian.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Staterments

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with requirements of IFRSs, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free frorn material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial staternents, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

Thoese charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting
process.

Deloitte refers to ong or more of Delaitte Touehe Tobmatsu Limited ("DTTLY], ts glabal netwsrk of rember firrs, and theil rolated
entities [gollactively, the “Deleitte crganzation”). H1L {alsa referred to as "Deloitte Global”b and eoch of its mernber firms and related
entities are legally separate and independent entities, which cannot abligate or bind ezch cther in respect of tird partles. DTTL and each
OTTL mermber firnn and  elrted entity is Fable only for its cwn acts and emissions, and not these of cach other. DTTL does not pravide
services ko clients, Pleast soe wwwod cloitte.comyahaut talearn more.

1B 3022 Deloitte B Touche, LLT. All tights reserved.



Auditor’s Respansibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to ohtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considerad material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with I5As, we exercize professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a materizl misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errar, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the gverride of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of interna! control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circurnstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinicn on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal contral.

v Evaluate the approprigteness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢+ Conclude onthe appropriateness of managament's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whethar a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's
ability to centinue as a going concern. If we conciude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditot's report to the related disclosuras in
the financial staternents or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transacticns and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internaf cantrol that we identify during our audit.

Kanyshai Sadytbe " a

Engagement Leader

Managing Director

LLC Deloitte & Touche

Qualified Auditor of the Kyrgyz Republic
Qualification certificate NeQ151, Series A
dated 1 June 2012

28 March 2022
Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic



Demir Kyrgyz International Bank €JSC

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2021
{in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interast income hefore allowance for expected credh losses on interest
bearing assets
Allowance for expectad credit Iosses on interest bearing assets

Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission axpense

Met fee and commission income

Met foreign exchange gain
Other oparating Income

Operating Income

Recavery of pravision / |provision) for other assets

fmpairment losses on lpan commitments and financial guarantees
Personnel expenszes

Other operating expensas

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Prefit for the year

tems that are or may be reclassified subsegquentiy to profit or loss:
Maovement in fair value reserve (investment securities at FVOCL):
Losses arlsing during the perlod

Recoveries credit [osses recognised |n profit ar loss
Other comprehensive loss, net of Income tax

Total camprehensive income for the year

On behalf of the

Mr Sevki Sarilz lHiya Djakipova
Ga eral Mana r

25  arch 2022
Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic Kyrgyz Republic

The notes on pages 10-94 form an integral part of these financial stataments,

Notes

5,30
520

1,30
24, 28
10, 30
11,30

12

Year ended
31 Decernber
2021

1,372,571
(324,922)

1,048,049
{10,666}

1,037,382
738,505
{385,988)
352,819
355,156
51,815

1,807,173

10,828
14,638}
(672,546)
(552,335)

578,482
{53,649)

518,833

(217}
(104}

(318}
518,515

Year ended
31 December
2020

1,265,971
1330.804)

935,162
(67,599)

867,163

457,356
(252,325}

205,031

401,503
17445

1,491,542

{30,659)
11,870)
{580,638)
{449,906

428,379
(39.321)

389,058

(78)
{1,234}

11,312]
387,746



Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2021
{in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans and advances o banks

Loans to customers

- Logns to corporate rustamers

- Loons to retail customers

Investment securities at amortized cost
Investment securities at FYQCI
Property, equipment and intangible assats
Right-of-use assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to banks

Current accounts and deposits from customers

- Current gocounts ond deposits from corporate custormers
- Current accounts and deposits from retail customers
Other borrowed funds

Lease liabilitles

Other iiahilities

Tatal liabilities

EQUITY

Share capital

Share premium

Revaluation reserve for financhal instruments at fair value through ather

comprehensiva income
Retained eamings
Total equity
Tatal liabilities and equity

on  half of the Mana

M Sev iSarifar - Mrs  Ifiya Dja ipova
Ge er Manager " 3_.“ Chief Accountant
28 are (22 ) 28 March 2022

Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic oé

Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic

The notes on pages 10-94 form an integral part of thesa financlal statements.

Motes

13,30
14
15, 30

16

17
18, 30
1%, 30

20
21,30
21
21
2
23,30
24,30

25

31 Decamber
2021

12,384,660
3,512,926
12,712,007
10,757,430
1,954,577
210,431
493 244
167 320
915,559
30,396,947

177.045
25,645,589
10,324,625
15,320,964

532,447

170,532

270,375
26,795,988

2,000,000
1

1,600,458
3,600,459
30,396,447

31 December
2020

10,622,268
3,805,105
10,000,049
8,582,341
1,417,708
202,148
74,171
416,455
72,448
559,161
25,752,305

17,107
21,489,003
7,979,750
13,509,252
804,599
97,713
171,879
22,670,361

600,000
1

318
2,481,825
3,081,944

25,752,305



Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2021
fin thousonds of Kyrgyz Som)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
— o 2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interast receipts 1,383,071 1,194,530
Interast payrments {302,531) 1300, 726}
Fee and cammlsslon receipts 738,805 495,012
Fee and commission payments (385,986) [292,325)
Met receipts from foreign exchange 349,197 358,906
Cther receipts £2,24% 17,678
Personnel expanses (618,900} {586,474)
Other operating expenses o {341,388) {220,194}
Cash inflow from operating activities before changes in operating assets
and liabifitles 484,617 £66,347
Decrease / fincrease) in operating ossets
Loans and advancas to banks 379,446 (772,178}
Loans to customers (2,658,482} [446,457)
Other assets (329,917} 118,048
increase / {Decrease) in operating fiabitities
Due ta banks 160,140 [8.681)
Current accounts and deposits from customears 3,855,532 B3,585
Other liabilities {20,329) {54,587)
Net cash from / {used in) operating activities before income tax paid 2,260,997 413,519)
Income tax paid (33.811) (47,057)
Net cash inflow / {outflow) from operating activities after taxation 2,227,186 (460,576}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of investment securities at amartised cost - (162,263)
Repayment of investment securities at amartised cost [6.232) 59,837
Purchases of Investment securities at FYOCla - {89,655)
Repayment of Investment securities at FYOCT 73,954 239,751
Purchases of property and equip and intangible assets {218,815} {130,669}
Net cash used in investing acthvities {151,093) (53,005)




Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CISC

Statement of Cash Flows {continved)
for the year ended 31 December 2021
{in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Raceipts of other barrowed funds
Repayments of other borrowed funds
Repayment of lease llabllities

Net cash used in financing activities

NET INCREASE N CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents
CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS a5 at the baginning of the year
Effect of changes in ECL on cash and cash equivatents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS as at the end of the year

On behalf of the Mana

WM Sevk| Sar ar hrs,

Ge eral Man er | L Accountant
i 2

28 March 2022 /,'J uo‘ 28 March 2022

Bishkek, kyrgyz Republlc o P

Fifn
Hrennaiid
ATERE

The notes on pages 10-24 form an integral part of these financial statements,

Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic

Year ended
31 December
2021

{362,261)
{75,315)

{437 ,608)
1,638,487
123,695
10,622,268
210
12,384,660

Year ended
31 December
2020

385,747
{325,421)
(81.048)

[20,670)
{534,251
974,858
10,178,197
3,464
10,622,268






Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

fin thausu_nds of Kyrgyz Som)

1.

General information
{a) Principal activities

Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CISC (hereinafter - the “Bank”) was established in the Kyrgyz Republic as
a clased joint-stack company on 2 May 1997. The principal activities are deposit taking and customer
account maintenance, lending, issuing guarantees, processing services, cash and settlement operations
and transactions with securities and foreign exchange. The activities of the Bank are regulated by the
National Bank of the Kyrgyz Republic {hereinafter - “NBKR”). The Bank has a general banking license # 035
issued on 11 March 1999, which was renewed on 22 June 2017. The Bank is a member of the state
daposit insurance system in the Kyrgyz Republic.

The Bank's registered office is 245, Chui Avenue, Bishkek, 720001, the Kyrgyz Republic.

The Bank has fourteen branchas and twenty-two outlets, The majority of the assets and liabilities are
located in the Kyrgyz Republic.

[b} Shareholders

The table balow shows shareholders structure as at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020
Shareholders - % %
Mr. Halit Cingillieglu 925 92.5
HCBG Halding B.V. 7.5 7.5
Total 100.0 100.0

As at 21 December 2021 and 2020, the Bank is ultimately controlled by Mr. Halit Cingillioglu.
{c) Operating environment

Emerging markets such as Kyrgyz Republic are subject to differant risks than more develaped markets,
including economic, political and social, and legal and legislative risks. Laws and regulations affecting
businesses in Kyrgyz Republic continue to change rapidly, tax and regulatory frameworks are subject to
varying interpretations. The future economic direction of Kyrgyz Republic is heavily influenced by the
fiscal and monetary policies adapted by the government, together with developments in the legal,
regulatory, and political environment. The impact of further economic and political developments an
future operations and financial pasition of the Bank might be significant.

In addition ta that, starting from early 2020 a new coronavirus disease (COVID-19) has begun rapidly
spreading all over the world resulting in announcement of the pandemic status by the World Health
Organization in March 2020. Responses put in pface by many countries to contain the spread of COVID-19
are resulting in significant operational disruption for many companies and have significant impact en
global financial markats. As the situation is rapidly evolving it may have a significant effect on business of
many companies across a wide range of sectors, including, but not Jimited to such impacts as disruption
of business operations as a result of interruption of production or closure of facilities, supply chain
disruptions, quarantines of personnel, reduced demand and difficulties in raising financing.

10



Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CISC

Notes to the financial statements [continued)
for the year ended 31 Dacember 2021

{in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

2.

'n 2021, the Government of the Kyrgyz Republic continued to take measures aimed at preventing spread
of the COVID-19 and its impact, mainly by encouraging population towards vaccination, which helped to
smooth subsequent pandemic waves amid the appearance of new strains of the virus. The authaorities did
not introduce lockdown measures in response to new COVID-19 waves,

Gross Domestic Product demonstrated a growth of 3.6% as compared to 3.4% decrease in 2020
highlighting the steady recovery of the Kyrgyz economy. However, the inflation remained high due to
unrecovered supply chains, which negatively affects the purchasing power of the population. This leaves
many peopie highly exposed to the economic consequences of the pandemic. Eventually, the demand for
loans from the private sector is still lower against the pre-pandemic environment,

Polftical situation in the country alsc stabilised considering the referendum en changes to the
Constitution and the parliamentary elections, which were canfirmed as being transparant by
international ohservers.

The impact of these and further developments on future operations and financial position of the Bank at
this stage is difficult to determine.

New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year

The following amendments and interpretations are effective for the Bank effactive 1 January 2021:

Amendments to IFRS 9, 145 38, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Fhase 2)
Amendments to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Relfoted Rent Cont

The above standards and interpretations were reviewed by the Bank's management, but did not have a
significant effect on the financial statements of the Bank.

New and revised IFRS Standards in issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Bankhas not applied the following new and
revised 1FRS Standards that have been issued but are net yet effective:

Applicable to annual

reporting petiods

New or | lard or interpr — heginning on or after
IFRS 17 “Insurance controcts” 1 fanuary 2023
Amendients to IFRS 17 "insorance cortracts” 1 fanuary 2023
Amendments to 1AS 1 “Classification of Uabifities as Corrent or Non-current” fas part of the praject to

i late Annusl Imp ts to IFRS 2010-2012 cyries). 1 lanuary 2023
Amendments to 1AS 8 - "Pefinition of Accounting Estimates” 1 lanuary 2023
Amendments to 145 1 ond IFRS Practive Statement 2 - “Disclosure of Accounting Policles” 1 lanuary 2023
4 1 imp to IFRS fards 2018-2020:
Amendments to IFRS 3 - "Reference to the Conceptua! Framework” 1 lanuary 2022
Amendments to (A5 16 Property, Plant and Equlpment - Revenue Before Intended Use 1 January 2022
4 el te IAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Uebilitles and Contingent Assets” - “Loss-moking

Contracts — Completion Value™ 1 January 2022
Amendments to 1AS 12 Deferred Tax Relating to Assets and Uighilities Arising from « Siogle Tronsaction 1 January 2023
Amendment to IFRS 10 and I1AS 28 Sale or Contobution of Assets b an il ond its A inte Date to be d Iried

or Joint Venturs by the 1858

11



Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CISC
Notes to the financial statements {continued}

for the year ended 31 December 2021
fin thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

The management does not expect that the adoption of the Standards fisted ahove will have a material
impact on the financial statements of the Bank in future perfods.

3. Basis of preparation
{a) Statement of compliance

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Internatianal Financial
Reporting Standards (*IFRS”).

These financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Bank is a going concern and will
rontinue operation for the forgseeable future.

Management believes that the Bank will be able to continue as going concern.

{a) Basls of measurement

The financfal statemems are prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
below.

{b} Functional and prasentation currency

The functional currency of the Bank is the Kyrgyz Som (“KGS") as, being the national currency of the
Kyreyz Republic; it reflects the economic substance of the majority of underlying events and

circumstances relevant to them.

The KGS5 is also the presentation currency for the purpases of these financial statements. Financial
information presented in KGS is rounded to the nearest thousand.

Exchange rates for the currancies in which the Bank transacts were as follows:

3becember 31December
2021 2020

Closing exchange rates — KGS
1.5 Doltar ("USD") 84,7586 82,6498
1Euro 85.7857 101.3204

4. Significant accounting policies

The Bank has consistently applied the following accounting palicies to all periods presented in these
financial staternents.

1



Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC

Notes to the financial statements {continued}
for the year ended 31 December 2021
{in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

{a} Ferelgn currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Bank at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in faraign
currencies at the reparting date are retranstated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that
date. The foreign currency gain or loss on manetary items is the difference batween amortised cost in the
functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during
the period, and the amortised cast in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that
the fair value is determinad. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Foreigh currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss.
{b) Interest
Effective interest rate

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The
‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments ar recaipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

*  the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
¢ the amortised cost of the financial liability

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired assets, the 8ank estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of tha
financial instrument, but not expected credit losses. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated using estimated future cash flows including
expected credit losses,

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees and points paid or
received that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial fiability,

Amortised cost and gross carrying omount

The ‘amortised cost’ of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any expected credit loss
allowance.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ measured at amortised cost is the amortised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance,

13



Demir Kyrgyz International Bank €JSC

Notes to the financlal statements {continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021
{in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Calculation of interest income and expense

The effective interest rate of a financial asset or financial liability is calculated on initial recognition of a
financial asset ar a financial liability. In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest
rate is applied to the pross carrying amount of the asset {when the assat is not credit-impaired) or to the
amortised cost of the liability. The effective interest rate is revised as a result of periodic re-estimation of
cash flows of floating rate instruments to reflect movements in market rates of interest.

However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If
the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.
For financial assets that were credit-impaired on Tnitial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the asset. The calculation of
fnterest income does not revert to & gross basis, even if the credit risk of the asset improves.

For information on when financial assets are credit-impaired, see Note 4(d)(iv).
Presentotion

Interest income calculated using the effective interest method presented in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income includes interest on financial assets measured at amaortised cost.

Interest on financial assets measured at FVQC! are presented separately.

Interest expense presented in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income includes
interest on financial tabilities measured at amortised cost.

[¢] Fees and commission

Fee and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial
asset or financial liability are included in the effective interest rate {see Note 4{b}).

Other fee and commission income —including account servicing fees, sales commission — is recognised as
the related services are performed. If 2 loan commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down of a
loan, then the related loan commitment fee is recognised on a straight-line basis over the commitment
period.

A contract with a customer that results in a recognised financial instrument in the Bank's financial
statements may be partially in the scope of IFRS 9 and partially in the scope of IFRS 15. If this is the case,
then the Bank first applies IFRS 9 to separate and measure the part of the contract that is in the scope of
IFRS & and then applies IFRS 15 ta the residual,

Other fee and commission expenses relate mainly to transaction and service fees, which are expensed as
the services are received.

14



Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC

Notes to the financial statemants {continued)
for the year ended 31 Decernber 2021
{in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Perfarmance obligations and reventie recognition poficies

Fee and commission income from contracts with customers is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer. The Bank recognises revenue when it provides a service to a
customer,

The following table provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance
obligations in contracts with customers, including significant payiment terms, and the related revenue
recognition policies.

Hakure and timing of satisfacticn of performance obligations,
Type of service including signiflcant payment terms Revenue recognition policy

The Bank provides banking services to retail and corparate
customers, including account management, cash and sattlement
transactions, Foreign currency transactions and servicing fees.

Revenue from account servica snd
sarvicing feas is racognised over
time as the services are provided.
Revenue related to transactions is
recognlsed at the point in time
when the transaction takes place,

Fees for ongoing account management are charged to the
cestomer's account on @ manthly basis, The Bank sets the rates
Banking servire separately for retail and corporate customers.

Transaction-basad feas for Interchange, forelgn currency
transactions are charged to the custamer's account when the
transaction takes place.

Servicing fees are charged on a manthly basis and are based on
fixed rates.

{d} Financial assets and financial liabilities
i.Classificotion

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, FYOCI or FYTPL.
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the fallowing conditions and is not
designated as at FYTPL:

*  the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flaws;

»  the cantractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debtinstrument is measured at FVQCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FYTPL:

¢ the asset is hald within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

*  the contractual terms af the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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For debt financial assets measured at FVOCK, gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the following, which are recognised in profit or loss in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amartised cost:

» interest income using the effective interest method;
. ECL and reversals; and
. foreign exchange gains and losses,

When a debt financial asset measured at FVOC| is darecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from eguity to profit or loss.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Bank may irrevocably elect
to present subsequeant changes in fair value in other comprehensiva incame. This election is mada an an
investment-by-investrment basis. Gains and losses on such equity instruments are never reclassified to
profit or less and no impairment is recognised in profit or loss. Dividends are recognised in profit or loss
{see Note 4{d)(ii}} unless they cfearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment, in which
case they are recognised in other comprehensive income. Cumulative gains and losses recognised in
other comprehensive income are transferred to retained earnings on disposal of an investment.

Ali other financial assets are classified as measurad at FYTPL.

In additien, ¢n initial recognition, the Bank may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost ar at FVDCI as at FYTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Business model assessment

The Bank makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a
portfalio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is provided to
management. The infarmation considered includes:

s the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those palicies in practice. In
particular, whether management's strategy focuses on earning comtractual interest revenus,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets ta the
duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale of the
assets;

N how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reporied to the Bank's management;

s the risks that affect the performance of the business mocdel (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how those risks are managed;

. how managers of the business arz compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

[ the frequency, velume and timing of sales in pricr periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about futura sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered
in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Bank’s stated objective for managing
the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor held
both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.
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Assessment whether contractual cosh flows are solely payments of principol and interest

Far the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Imerest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
tending risks and costs {e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs}, as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Bank
considers the contractual terms of the instrament. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Bank considers:

contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

leverage features;

prepayment and extension terms;

terms that limit the Bank’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse asset
arrangements); and

s features that modify consideration of the time value of money — e.g. periodical reset of interest
rates.

a.a r & 9

Reclassification

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the
Bank changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Finonclal liabifities

The Bank classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan commitments, as
measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

Reclassification

Financial liabilities are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition.

ii. Derecagnition

Financial assets

The Bank derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which

the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does
not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset {or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i} the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) znd {ii} any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognisad in profit or loss.
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The Bank enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its statement of financial
position but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets ora
portion of them. In such cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised. Examples of such
transactions are securities lending and sale-and-repurchase transactions.

In transactions in which the Bank neither retains nor transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the Bank continues to recognise the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extant te which it is exposed to
changes in the value of the transferred asset.

Financial liabilities

The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or
expire.

iii. Modification of financlal assets and financiaf liabiiities
Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are madified, the Bank evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified
asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different {referred to as “substantial
modification’}, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to
have expired. In this case, the otiginal financial asset is derecognised, and a new financial asset is
recognised at fair value plus any eligible transaction costs. Any fees received as part of the modification
are accounted for as follows:

»  fees that are considered in determining the fair value of the new asset and fees that represent
reimbursement of eligible transaction costs are included in the initial measuremant of the asset;
*  other feesare included in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss an derecognition.

The Bank performs a quantitative and qualitative evaluation of whether the modification is substantial,
i.e. whether the cash flows of the original financial asset and the modified or replaced financial asset are
substantially different. The Bank assesses whether the medification is substantial based on quantitative
and qualitative factors in the following order: qualitative factors, quantitative factors, combined effect of
qualitative and quantitative factors. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual
rights to cash flows from the original financial asset deemed to have expired. In making this evalvation
the Bank analogizes to the guidance on the derecognition of financial liabilities.

The Bank concludes that the modification is substantial as a result of the following qualitative factors:

= change the currency of the financial asset;
+  change in collateral or other credit enhancement,
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If cash flows are modified when the borrower is in financial difficulties, then the objective of the
modification is usually to maximise recovery of the original contractual terms rather than to originate a
new asset with substantially different terms, If the Bank plans to modify a financial asset in a way that
would result in forgiveness of cash flows, then it first considers whether a portion of the asset should be
written off before the modification takes place (see below for write-off pelicy). This approach impacts the
result of the quantitative evaluation and means that the derecognition criteria are not usually met in
such cases. The Bank further parforms quaBtative evaluation of whether the modification is substantial,

If the madification of a financial asset measured at amortised cost or FYOCI does not result in
derecagnition of the financial asset, then the Bank first recalculates the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset using the original effective interest rate of the asset and recognises the resulting
adjustment as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. For floating-rate financial assets, the original
effective interest rate used to calculate the modification gain or loss is adjusted to reflect current market
terms at the time of the modification: Any costs or fees incurred and feas received as part of the
modification adjust the gross carrying amount of the madified financial asset and are amartised over the
remaining term of the modified financial asset.

If such @ modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower
{see Note 4{d)(iv}}, then the gain or loss is presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is
presented as interest income calculated using the effective interest method. (see Note 4(b)).

For fixed-rate loans, where the horrower has an cption to prepay the loan at par without significant
penalty, the Bank treats the modification of an interest rate to a current market rate using the guidance
on floating-rate financial instruments. This means that the effective interest rate is adjusted
prospectively,

Financial liabilltles

The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially differant, In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.
Consideration paid includes non-financial assets transferred, if any, and the assumption of liabilities,
including the new modified financial liability.

Bank performs a quantitative and qualitative evaluation of whether the modification is substantial
considering qualitative factors, quantitative factors and combined effect of qualitative and quantitative
factors. The Bank concludes that the modification is substantial as a result of the fellowing qualitative
factors:

change the currency of the financial liability;
change in collateral or other credit enhancement;
inclusion of conversion option;

change in the subordination of the financial liability.

* & ¥ @

For the quantitative assessmaent the terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of
the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted
using the origiral effective interast rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present
value of the remaining cash flows of the ariginal financial liability,

1%



Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJISC

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021
{in thousands af Kyrgyz Som)

If the modification of a financial liability is not accounted for as derecognition, then the amortised cost of
the liability is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective interest rate
and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or [oss. For floating-rate financial liabilities, the
original effective interest rate used to calculate the modification gain or loss is adjusted to reflect current
market terms at the time of the modification. Any costs and fees incurred are recognised as an
adjustmant to the carrying amount of the liability and amortised over the remaining term of the modified
financial liability by re-computing the effective interest rate on the instrument.

v impoirment

The Bank recognises foss allowances for expected credit losses [ECL} an the following financial
instruments that are not measured at FWTPL:

» financial assets that are debt instruments;
L financial guarantee contracts issued; and
» loan commitments issued.

No impairment loss is recoghised on equity investrents,

The Bank measures loss allowances at an amaunt equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, for

which they are measured as 12-manth ECL:

. debt investmant securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

»  otherfinancial instruments on which credit risk has not increased significantly since their initial
racognition

The Bank considers a debt investment security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is
equivalent ta the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’,

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date, Financial instruments for which a 12-month ECL is
recognised are referred to as ‘Stage 1’ financial instruments.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the
financial instrument. Financial instruments for which a lifatime ECL is recognised are referred to as
‘Stage 2’ financial instruments.
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Measurement of £CL
ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

" fingncial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash
shortfalls {i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive);

«  financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows;

«  undrawn lpan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash
flows that are due to the Bank if the cormmitment s drawn down and the cash flows that the Bank
expects to receive; and

»  financial guarantee cantracts: the present value of expected payments to reimburse the halder less
any amounts that the Bank expacts to recover,

Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced with
a new one due to financial difficulties of the barrower, then an assessment is made of whether the
financial asset should be derecognised {see Note 4{d}(iii})) and ECL are measured as follows.

s {f the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected
cash flows arising from the madified financial asset are included in calculating the cash shortfalls
from the existing asset

s {fthe expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected fair
value of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time
of its derecognition. This amount is included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing
financial asset that are discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting date
using the original effective interest rate of the existing financial asset.

Credit-impoired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
financial assets carried at FVOC! are credit-impaired (referred to as ‘Stage 3’ financial assets). A financial
asset is “credit-impaired’ when ane or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following chservable data:

. significant financizl difficulty of the horrawer or issuer;

s a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

¢ the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Bank on terms that the 8ank would not consider
otherwise;

v itis becaming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisatian; or

* the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financiat difficulties.
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A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s condition is usually
considered to be credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash
flows has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. In addition, a retail loan
that is overdue for 80 days or more is considered cradit impaired.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

¢ financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the grass carrying amount of the
assets;

*  |pan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a provision;

+«  dabt instruments measured at FYOCI: no loss allowance is recognised in the statement of financial
position because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value. However, the loss allowance
is disclosed and is recognised in tha fair value reserve.

Write-offs

Loans and debt securities are written off (gither partially or in full) when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case
when the Bank determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. This assessment is carried
out at the individual asset level.

Recoveries of amounts previously written off are included in impairment losses on interest bearing
assets” in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in arder to comply
with the Bank’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

v.Fair value measurement principles

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liahility in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in its absence, the
maost advantageous market {0 which the Bank has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects
its non-performance risk.

When available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information an an ongoing basis,

When there is no quoted price in an active market, the Bank uses valuation technigues that maximise the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation
technique incorporates all the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing
transaction,
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The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is nermally the
transaction price, i.e., the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Bank determines that
the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced
nefther by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets, the financial instrument is initially measured at
fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the
transaction price.

Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an apprepriate basis over the life of the
instrument but no later than when the valuation is supported wholly by chservable market data or the
transaction is closed out.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, the Bank measures assets
and long positions at the bid price and liabilities and short positions at the ask price.

vi.Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally erforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously

{e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, unrestricted baiances {nostro accounts) held with the
NBKR and other hanks, and liquid financial assets with original maturities of less than three months,
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Bank in the
management of short-term commitments. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the
staterment of financial position.

{f) Loans to customers

" Loans to customers’ caption in the statement of financial position include:

«  Loans to custormers measured at amortised cost {see Note 4{d}{1]}; they are initially measured at fair
value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently at their amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

[g] Investments securities

The ‘investment securities’ capticn in the statement of financial position includes:

*  debt investment securities measured at amortised cost (see Note 4{d){i)}; these are Initially
measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently at their

amortised cost using the effective interest method;
¢ debt securities measured at FYOC| (see Note 4{d){i)).
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{h) Flnancial guarantees and loan commitments

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Bank to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when it is due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Loan commitiments are firm commitments to provide

credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

Financial guarantees issued or commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate are initially
measured at fair value. Subseguently, they are measured as follows:

*  atthe higher of the loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS 9 (see Note 4{e}(iv})) and the
amount initially recognised less, whan appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accardance with the principles of IFRS 15.

The Bank has issued no loan commitments that are measured at FVTPL.

For other loan commitments the Bank recognises a loss allowance (see Note #{d) {iv))

Liabilities arising from financial guarantees and loan commitments are included within provisions,

{i) Property and equipment

Owned assets

ltems of property and equipment are stated at cost less accurmulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Where an item of property and equipment comprises, major components having different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items of property and equipment,

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated usefu! lives of the
individual assets, Depreciation commences on the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally
constructed assets, from the time an asset is completed and ready for use. Land is not depraciated. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and constructlons 5 years;
Computers and office equipment 3-5 years;
Vehicles S years;
Leasehald Improve ments jower of rseful life or rent perind.

{il Intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Acquired computer software licenses are ¢apitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software.

Amartisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets. The estimated useful lives range up to 3 to S years.
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{k} Impairment of non-financlal assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Bank reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets
{property, equipment, intangible assets, foreclosed assets, etc.) to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss [if
any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is
based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted 1o their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time vaiue of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

(I} Foreclosed assets

Foreclosed assets are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
tosts of completion and selling expenses.

[m) Depasits and other horrowed funds

Deposits and other borrowed funds are initially measured at fair value minus incremental direct
transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the effective interast
method.

{n} Provision

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Bank has a legal or constructive
abligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic berefits will be
required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

{o} Share capital

{i)  Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary
shares and share options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

{ii) Dividends
The ability of the Bank to declare and pay dividends is subject to the legislation of the Kyrgyz Republic.

Dividends in relation to ordinary shares are reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings in the
period when they are declared.
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fifi} Revaluation reserve of Investiment securities at FYOC!

Revaluation reserve of investment securities at FVOCH comprises changes in fair value of investment
securities at FYOC).

{p) Taxation

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Incorne tax is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items of other comprehensive incame or transactions with shareholders
recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised within other comprehensive income or
directly within equity.

Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reparting purpoeses and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets or labilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit.

The measurament of deferred taxes reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which
the Bank expects, at the end of the reperting period, 1o recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expacted to be applied to the temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences, unused tax losses and credits can be utilised. Deferred
tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realised.

[q) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Use of estimates and judgrments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgement, estimates and assumptions
that affact the application of the Bank’s accounting policies and the reparted amounts of assets and
liabifities, incorne and expense. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisfons to accounting

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.
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ludgements
Business mode! assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the rasults of the SPPI and the business
modef test. The Bank determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial
assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes
judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and
their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are
managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Bank monitors financial assets
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive incame that are derecognised
prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are
consistent with the objective of the businass for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part

of the Bank’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial
assets are held continues to be appropriste and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change
in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Bank censiders reasonahle and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effert. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Bank's historical experience and expert credit assessmeant and including forward-
looking information.

The objective of the assessmant is to identify whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred for
an exposure by comparing:

¢ the remaining lifetime probability of default (PD) as at the reporting date; with
+  the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of initial recagnition
of the exposure {adjusted where relevant for changes in prepayment expectations).

The Bank uses three criteria for determining whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk:

* quantitative test based on movement in probability of default (PD);

e qualitative indicators; and

«  backstop of 30 days past due, except for financial assets othar than loans to customers, inciuding
cash equivalents, loans and advances to banks, investment securities for which a backstop of
1 day past due is applied.

Credit risk grodes

The Bank allocates each exposure 10 a credit risk grade based on a variety of data that is determined to
be predictive of the risk of default and applying experienced credit judgement. Credit risk grades are
defined using qualitative and quantitative factors that are indicative of risk of default. These factors vary
depending on the nature of the exposure and the type of borrower.
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Credit risk grades are defined and calibrated such that the risk of default occurring increases
exponentially as the credit risk deteriorates so, far example, the difference in risk of default between
credit risk grades 1 and 2 is smaller than the difference between credit risk grades 2 and 3.

Each exposure is allocated to a credit risk grade at initial recognition based on available information
about the borrower. Exposures are subject to ongoing monitoring, which may result in an exposure haing
moved to a different credit risk grade. The monitoring typically involves use of the following data.

Corporate exposure All exposures [corporate and retail exposures)
®»  Information obtained during periodic review of customer *  Paymant record - this includes gverdue status as well
files — e.g. audited financial staterments, management a5 a range of variahles about payment ratlos

accounts, budgets and prajections. Examples of areas of
particular forus are gross profit margins, financial leverage
ratios, debt service coverage, compliance with covenants,

guality af management, senior germent changes

»  Data from credit reference agencies, press articles, changes »  Utilisation of the granted limit
in external credit ratings - Requests for and granting of forbearance

+  Quoted bond and credit default swap (CDS) prices for the »  Existing and forecast changes in business, financial and
horrower where available economic conditions

& Actual and expected significant changes in the political,
regulatory and technologlcal ervirpnment of the borrower or
in its business activities

Generating the term structure of PO

Credit risk grades are a primary input into the determination of the term structure of PD for exposures.
The Bank collects performance and default information about its credit risk exposures analysed by
jurisdiction or region and by type of product and borrower as well as by credit risk grading.

The Bank employs statistical models to analyse the data collected and generate estimates of the
remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are expected to change as a result of the passage of
time.

To assess PD for investmants securities, cash eguivalents, loans and advances to banks, the Bank uses an
estimate of Moody's default study separately for each counterparty.

In the absence of external ratings, the Bank based on observation and expert analysis, assigns the
fellowing credit ratings:

. Equivalent to external ratings of the controlling structure, but not higher than the sovereign credit
rating in which the main operational activity is conducted {if any);

*  Credit ratings of a related or similar organisation with similar signs of credit impairment {credit risk
tevel, method of repayment, loan term and interest rate, geographic similarity, sectar, etc.).

¢ Asovereign credit rating adjusted downwards by at least 2 notches, depending on the results of the
conducted creditworthiness study of the financial institution, as well as financial risks, industry and
competitive position.
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Determining whether credit risk has incregsed significantiy

The Bank assesses whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition at each
reporting period. Determining whether an increase in credit risk is significant depends on the
characteristics of the financial instrument and the borrower, and the geographical region. What is
considered significant wil! differ for different types of lending, in particular between corporate and retail.

The credit risk may also be deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition based on
qualitative factors linked to the Bank's credit risk management processes that may not ctherwise be fully
reflected in its quantitative analysis on a timely basis, This will be the case for exposures that meet
certain hightened risk criteria, such as placement on a watch list. Such qualitative factors are based on its
expert judgement and relevant historical experience.

The presence of more than one criteria below is sufficient to change classification reflecting significant
increase in credit risk:

+  Significant deterioration of the financial condition of the counterparty.

¢ Significant deterioration of the competitive position of the counterparty in its industry.

*  Significant delays in realization of investments projects {construction or ather sector} of more than
& month which resulted in deterioration of financial perfarmance of the borrowar;

+  Significant decrease in the value of the financial instruments in the active market from the date of
initial recognition of the instrument.

. Involvement of the counterparty in litigation for the amount of the claim exceeding 20% of its
assets,

. Decrease in the market value of collateral by more than 50%, external or internal factors that may
lead ta a complete or partial loss of collateral;

*  Systematic breach of prudential standards set by the regulator.

+  Implementation of the direct hanking supervision procedure by the NBKR in regard to the
counterparty,

*  Violation of the law, problems with government bodies; refusal to provide financial statements for a
period of more than & months; avoidance of contacts with the Bank.

As a backstop, the Bank considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than when an
asset is more than 30 days past due, except for financial assets other than loans to customers, including
cash equivalents, loans and advances to banks, investment securities for which a backstop of 1 day past
dug is applied. Days past due are determined by counting the number of days since the earliest elapsed
due date in respect of which full payment has not been received. Due dates are determined without
considering any grace period that might be available to the borrower.

If there is evidence that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk relative to initial recognition,
then the loss allowance on an instrument returns ta being measured as 12-month ECL. Some qualitative
indicators of an increase in credit risk, such as delinquency of forbearance, may be indicative of an
increased risk of default that persists after the indicator itself has ceased to exist. In these cases, the Bank
determines a prabation period during which the financial asset is reguired to demonstrate good
hehaviour to provide evidence that its credit risk has declined sufficiently. When contractual terms of a
lan have been madified, evidence that the criteria for recognising lifetime ECL are no longer met
includes history of up-to-date payment performance against the modified contractual terms.
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The Bank monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify significant increases in credit risk by
regular reviews to confirm that:

*  the criteria are capable of identifying significant increases in credit risk before an exposure is in
default;

*  the criteria do not align with the point in time when an asset becomes 30 days past due;

«  the average time between the identification of a significant increase in credit risk and default
apypears reasonable;

. exposures are not generally transferred directly from 12-month ECL measurement to credit-
impaired; and

* there is no unwarranted volatility in loss allowance from transfers between 12-month ECL {stage 1}
and lifetime ECL measuremants (stage 2),

Definition of default
The Bank considers a financial asset to be in default when:

¢ the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations ta the Bank in full, without recourse by the Bank
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);

s the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the Bank.
Overdrafts are considered as being past due once the customer has breached an advised limit or
been advised of 3 limit smaller than the current amount outstanding; or

e jtis becoming probable that the borrower will restructure the asset as a result of bankruptcy due to
the borrower’s inability to pay its ¢redit obligations.

in assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Bank considers indicators that are:

* (qualitative — e.g. breaches of cavenant, liguidation, withdrawal or suspension of a license,
catastrophic events, as a result of which the activities of the counterparty were suspended, event of
cross-default on other obligations of the counterparty;

. quantitative — e.g. overdue status and non-payment an another obligation of the same issuer to the
Bank; financial institutions rated D and RD at the reporting date; and

*  based on data developed internally and ohtained from external sources.

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their significance may vary
over time to reflect changes in circumstances.

IFRS 9 COVID-19 relief measures
The Bank definas whether the COVID-19 pandemic is having an impact on a significant increase in the
credit risk of borrowers. The Bank has temporarily redefined the indicators of “default” and “significant

increase in credit risk” {SICR), thus adjusting the probability of default given the pandemic effect.

The Bank also applies macroeconomic forecasts that consider the impact of COVID-19 that is available
without bearing undue cost or effort.

In this regard, the Bank performs following adjustments.
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Collective assessment.

According to the revised methodology of the Bank, all loans forbarne due to the COVID-19 pandemic and
which previously used to have a low credit risk are not considered as credit-impaired loans.
The Bank cansidered the foliowing criteria:

1. Loan remains in category 1 (stage 1) under the following conditions:

- - Customer had no delay for payments (or had delay not more than 7 days) before COVID-19
pandemic and applied to the Bank with application for deferring of payments for a total period of not
more than 12 months {for Corporate clients) and not mare than 6 months for SME and retail clients;

2. Loanis transferred to category 3 {stage 2) untler the following conditions:

- - Customer had any delay for payments (8-30 days) before COVID-19 pandemic and applied to the
Bank with application for deferring of payments for a total period not more than 12 months (for
Corporate clients) and not more than 6 months for SME and retail clients;

- - Customer had no delay for payments {not more than 7 days} before COVID-19 pandemic, but
applied to the Bank with application for deferring of payments for more than 12 months (for
Corporate clients) and for more than & months for SME and retail clients.

3. Loanis transferred to category 5 {stage 3} under the following conditions:

- -Customer was in PDL list {more than 30 days delay) before COVID-19 pandemic and applied to the
Bank with application for deferring of payments and made na payments during COVID-18 cutbreak.
But the loan can be transferred to category 4 (stage 2) if the client makes partial repayments
{principal or interest).

Thus, loans modified and overdue due to the COVID-1% pandemic and passed the criteria described
above are not considered as default loans or loans with significant increase in credit risk.

individual assessment.

The Bank monitors credit impaired corporate borrowers in order to determine SICR factors via analysis of
their projected cash flow, financial performance and business prospects taking into account economy
sector adversely suffered fram the pandemic, where corporate borrowers operate.

The monitoring of corporate horrowers is perfarmed via following measures:

*  Review of the potential solvency of the borrower. The Bank compares the customer’s discounted
projected cash flows until the end of the loan term with the loan outstanding balance at the
reparting date.

¢ Review of historical solvency. The Bank checks the borrower’s loan rapayment, discipline and
restructuring history, if any.

¢ Review of the business activity. The Bank conducts a general review of the borrower's source of
income for the presence of high risk factors.

*  Review the change in the market value of the security of the borrower.
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If the borrowers financial performance, its business, loan repayment discipline and ather factors had not
indicated SICR factors prior to the pandemic, then the COVID-19 related loan contract madifications with
deferral period up to 12 month, delayed lpan repayments and temporary deterioration of financial
performance shall not be considerad as SICR factors.

These assumptions are considerad as temporary relief measures and they will be ceased to be effective
by decision of tha Bank Management Board.

Incorporation of forward-looking infarmation

The Bank incorporates forward-looking information into both the assessment of whether the credit risk
of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and the measurement of ECL.
The Bank formulates three economic scenarios: a basic case, which is the median scenario and bwo less
likely scenarios, one optimistic and one pessimistic. Followings are probability of occurring of different
scenarins for loan portfolio segments:

Basic Optimistic Pessimistic
Corperate loans 67% 17% 7%
SME lpans 4% 12% 14%
Mortgage loans 79% 10% 12%
Credlt cards 1% 24% 5%
Secured consumer loans FO% % 23%
Unisecured consumer loans F1% 24% 5%

The basis scenario is alighed with information used by the Bank for other purposes such as strategic
pianning and budgeting. External information considered includes economic data and forecasts published
by governmental Bodies in the country where the Bank operates, such as the National Statistic
Committee and the Ministry of Economy of the Kyrgyz Republic, and selected private sector and
academic forecasters. Periodically, the Bank carries aut stress testing of more extreme shocks to calibrate
its determination of the upside and downside representative scenarios. A review is performed at least
annually on the design of the scenarios by a panel of experts that advises the Bank’s senior management.

The Bank has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit lossas for each portfalio of
financial instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships between
macro-economic variables and credit risk and credit losses.
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The economic scenarios used for loan portfolio as at 31 December 2021 included the following key
indicators for the Kyrgyz Republic for the years ending 31 Decermnber 2021 through 2023,

:Segment I ic variables 2022 2023 __il:lu ]
|Base -0.4% Base 4,1% ‘Base 4.0%
Corporate loans Remittances |Upside 17.7% \Upside 3.5% Upside 3.4%
| S ;Downside -18.4% Downside 5.0%  Downside 4.9%
— 1 | ————— —
Import |Base -20.1% Base 6.3% Base 6.0%
SKIE lpans P Upside -32.7%  Upside £.3% Upside 63% |
| | |Downsida -24.5% |Downside 5.9%  Downside 5.6%
[Base-130%  Bases5.0% |Base 5.4%
Mortgage loans External turngwver :Upslde 43% ‘Upside 4.2% Upside 4.5%
= ] |Downside -30.3% Downside £2%  Downside 6.6%
[ [ 0 o - [Base 19.6% (Base 4.3% 'Base 3.6%
Secured consumer loans |Upslde 12.0%  Upside 4.6% Upside 3.8%
] |Downside 27.2%  Downside 4.1%  Downside 3.4%
|credit cards, Unsecured f o |Base -0.5% :Base 0.0% 'Base 0.1%
consurmner loans Unemploymant level |Upside -0.8% Upside 0.0%  Upside 0.1%

. - |Dowrside -0.3% | Downside 0.0% _ Downside 0.1%
Predicted relationships between the key indicator and default and loss rates on various portfolios of
financial assets have been developed based on analysing historical data over the past 2011 to 2021 years.

Moaodified financial assets

The contractual terms of a loan may be modified for a number of reasons, including changing market
conditions, customer retention and other factors not related to a current or potential cradit deteripration
of the customer. An existing loan whose terms have been modified may be derecognised and the
renegotiated loan recegnised as a new loan at fair value in accordance with the accounting palicy set aut
in Note 4.

When the terms of & financial asset are modified and the medification does not result In derecognition,
the determination of whether the asset’s credit risk has increased significantly reflects comparison of:

. s remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms; with
¢ the remgining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the original contractual
terms.

When muodification results in derecogniticn, a new Inan is recognised and allocated to Stage 1 {assuming
it is not credit-impaired at that time).

The Bank renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulties {referred to as ‘forbearance activities'}
ta maximise cotlection opportunities and minimise the risk of default. Under the Bank's forbearance
policy, loan forbearance is granted on a selective basis if the debtor is currently in default on its debt or i
there is a high risk of default, there is evidence that the debtor made all reasonable efforts to pay under
the original contractual terms and the debtor is expected to be able to meet the revised terms.




Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021
{in thousands of Kyrgyr Sarmn)

The revised terms usuaily include extending the maturity, changing the timing of interest payments and
amending the terms of loan cavenants. Both retail and corporate loans are subject to the forbearance
policy.

For financial assets modified as part of the Bank's forbearance policy, the estimate of PD reflects whether
the modification has improved or restored the Bank’s abllity to collect interest and principal and the
Bank’s previous experience of similar forbearance action. As part of this process, the Bank evaluates the
borrower’s payment parformance against the modified contractual terms and considers various
kehavioural indicators.

Generally, forbearance is a gualitative indicator of a significant increase in credit risk and an expectation
of forbearance may constitute evidence that an exposure is credit-impaired. A customer needs to
demonstrate consistently good payment behavior over a period of time before the exposure 1s no longer
considered to be credit-impaired/ in default or the PD is considered to have decreased such that the loss
allowance reverts to being measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL
The key inputs inte the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:

s probability of default (PD);
*  loss given default {LGD);
. exposure at default (EAD].

ECL for axposures in Stage 1 is calculated by multiplying the 12-month PD by LGD and EAD. Lifetime £CL1s
calculated by multiplying the lifetime PD by LGD and EAD.

The methodology of estimating PDs is discussed above under the heading “Generating the term structure
of PD”.

The Bank estimates LGD parameters based on the history of recovery rates of claims against defaulted
counterparties. The LGD models consider the structure, collateral, seniority of the ¢laim, counterparty
industry and recovery costs of any collateral that is integral to the financial asset. LGD estimates are
recalibrated for different economic scenarios and, for real estate tending, to reflect possible changes in
property prices. They are calculated on a discounted cash flow basis using the effective interest rate as
the discounting factor.

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Bank derives the EAD from the
current exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the current amount allowed under the
contract and arising from amartisation, The EAD of a financial asset is its gross carrying amount at the
time of default. For lending commitments, the EAD is potential future amounts that may be drawn under
the contract, which are estimated based on historical observations and forward-loaking forecasts. For
financial guarantesas, the EAD represents the guarantee exposure when the financial guarantee becomes
payable.
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As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a 12-month PD for $tage 1 financiai assets, the
Bank measures ECL considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual pericd [including any
barrower’s extension options) over which it is exposed to credit risk, even if, for credit risk management
purposes, the Bank considers a longer period. The maximum contractual periad extands to the date at
which the Bank has the right to require repayment of an advance or terminate a loan commitment or
guarantee.

However, for retail overdrafts and credit card facilities that include both a loan and an undrawn
commitment component, the Bank measures ECL over a period longer than the maximum contractual
period if the Bank's contractual ability te demand repayment and cancel the undrawn commitment does
not limit the Bank’s exposure to credit losses to the contractual notice period. These facilities da not have
a fixed term or repayment structure and are managed on a collective basls. The Bank can cancel them
with immediate effect but this contractual right is not enforced in the normal day-to-day management,
but only when the Bank becomes aware of an increase in credit risk at the facility level. This longer period
is estimated taking into account the credit risk management actions that the Bank expects to take and
that serve to mitigate ECL. These include a reduction in limits, cancellation of the facility and/or turning
the outstanding balance into a loan with fixed repayment terms.

Where modelling of a paratneter is carried aut on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped on the basis of shared risk characteristics that include:

. instrurnent type;
. customer typa;
*  currency type.

The groupings are subject to regular review to ensure that expeosures within a particular group remain
appropriately homogeneous.

Far portfolios in respect of which the Bank has limited historical data, external benchmark information is
used to supplement the internally available data. The portfalios for which external benchmark
infermation represents a significant input into measurement of ECL are cash and cash equivalents,
investment securities and loans and advances to banks, External benchmark information used for PD and
LGD is taken from Moody's corporate default and recovery rates table.
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5. Netinterest income

Year endad Year ended
21 December 21 Recermber
— 2021 220
Interest Income calculated using the effective interest method
Loans to customers 1,250,958 1,079,759
Loans and advances 1o banks 76,826 100,389
tCash and cash equivalents 28,396 60,455
Investmant securities a1 amortised cost 16,571 16,131
Total irnterest intome caloulated using effective interest method 1,372,651 1,257,244
Investment securlties at FYOC 30 8,727
Total interest income 1,372,571 1,265,971
Interest expanss
Cutrant actounts and depesits from customers {239,796) {231,364)
Due to banks and other borrowed funds 169,427) (82,301}
Lease Hability {10,275} (15,892)
Other interest expenses {5,424) 1652)
Total interest expense {324,522} (330,809)
Net interest income before allpwance for expected credit losses on interest
bearing assets 1,048 049 935,142
6, Allowance for expected credit losses on interest bearing assets
Year ended Year encded
31 Decamber 31 December
- — - = 2021 2020
Loans to customers 115,515} {84,021}
Loans and advances to banks 2,494 15,655
Investment securities at amartised cost and FYTOG 2,152 {2,173)
Cash and cash egquivalants S 207 2,540
Total allowance for expected credit losses on interest hearing assets {10,666} 67,599}
7. Impairment losses and reserves on other assets
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
B - 021 2020
Other financlal assets {10,444) {3.641)
Other non-financial assets — 11272 {27,018)
Total recoveries/limpairment) losses and reserves on other assets 10,828 {30,659)
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10

Fee and commission income and expense

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 Pecember
- — - 20321 2020
Fee and commission income:
Plastic card service 383,647 245,308
Settlement 137,541 100,305
Cash operations 110,184 73,231
Aooount opening and maintenance 37,702 30,898
Guarantee and letter of credit issuance 25,253 19,889
Fattoring 11,871 3,388
Procassing 3,141 4,518
Other 24,466 15,118
Total fee and commission income 738,805 497,356
Fee and commission expense:
Plastic card service [346,456) (264,301}
Settlement 31,815} {21,215}
Cash operations (1,553} (2,218}
Other (6,162} {4,587}
Total fee and commission expense (385,986) |292,325)
Net foreign exchange gain
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
—= 2021 2020
Realised gain on forelgn exchange transactions 249,157 358,908
Unreslised gain Irom revaluation of monetary assets and liahilities 5,959 42,997
Total Net foreign exchange gain 355,156 441,903
Personnel expenses
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 Dacamber
= 2021 W20
Employza compensation 585,823 513,712
Payrolt related taxes = 86,723 66,926
Tatal personnel expenses 672,546 580,638
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11. Other operating expenses

12,

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Depreciation and amortisation 213,030 152,506
Repalrs and malntenance 73,471 60,685
Deposit insurance 44,612 40,508
Prafessional services 42,877 23,481
Security 27,569 26,016
Communication and infarmation services 26,898 23,632
Advertising and marketing 24,700 7,637
Representation and carporate events 19,423 10,449
Lard operation expenses 13,440 9,836
Insurance 12,548 2,405
Rant 7,434 8,666
Litilities 5,909 5,598
Office supplies 2,949 1,595
Charity and sponsarship 24,550 8.510
Travel expenses 2,260 1,963
Taras other than an Inceme 1,695 1,734
staff trainings 1,423 1,564
Other 28,451 16,706
Total Other operating exy 552,335 449,995
Income tax expense
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
o 2021 2020
Lurrent income tax expanse 50,209 4387
Deferred income tax expensef{benefit) ralating to arigination and reversal of
temporary differences 9,350 _ {4.550)
Total income tax expense 53,543 33321

In 2021 and 2020, the applicable tax rate for current and deferred tax is 10%.

Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effacts of temporary differences hetween the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. Temparary
differences as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 relate mostly to different methods of income and expense

recognition as well as to recorded values of certain assets.
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According to tha Tax Code of the Kyrgyz Republic for the computation of taxable profit, the Bank is
entitled to deduct impairmant reserves for loans to customers and foreclosed assets from the aggregated
annual income, accrued in accordance with NBKR “Regulation on classification of assets and aceruals of
provision for covering potentiai losses” #9504 registered in Ministry of Justice of the Kyrgyz Republic
dated 15 June 2017. Amount of loan loss provisions in financial statements is formed in accordance with

the requiremants of IFRS,

Reconciliation of effective tax rate for the year ended 31 December:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 Decernber
2021 % 2020 %
Profit before income tax 578,482 100.0 428,379 100.0
Income tax at the applicable tax rate 57,848 10.0 42,938 0.0
Change in astimate (52} 0.0 [5,381] {1.3)
Non-deductible expenses 1.853 0.3 1,864 0.4
Tatal income tax expense 549,645 10.3 39,321 a.2
Maovements in deferred tax {asset)/liability during the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are
presented as follows:
Recognised in
31 December  the statement of 31 December
2020 profit and loss 2021
Property and equipment 4,283 884 5167
Other assets {1,094 {359 {1,063
Loans 1o customers 7,510 4,907 12417
Foreclosed assats 5,729 4249 9,978
Lease liability . {321) {321)
16,428 9,350 25,778
Recognised In
the statement
31 December of profit and 31 December
2019 Toss 2000
Property and eguipment 5,094 (811) 4,283
Other assets (5409 (554) 11,094}
Loans to custamers 6,021 1,485 7510
Foreclosed assets N 10,403 (4,674) 5,729
21,978 {4,550} 16425
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13. Cash and cash equivalents

31D k 3110 i
2021 2020
Cashan hand 2,377,642 2,394,667
Nastra accounts with the NBKR
-rated B 1,596,824 1,823,954
Less: lois allowance - (327} [259)
1,996,557 1,823,695
Mostro accounts with ather banks:
- rated from AA- to AA+ 2,073,138 266,026
- rated from A- ta A+ 0,924 378,710
- rated BBB- to BBB+ 220,769 318,351
- vated from BE- to BB+ 710,862 523,442
- rated from B- to B+ ?91,5&0 624,933
3.817.544 2,111462
Less: loss allowante - 177 {152}
Total npstro accownts with other banks 3,817,367 2,111,310
Terrn deposit with the NBXR
- rated B - 150011
Less: loss allowance - {23}
MNet Term deposit with the NBKR - rated B - 149,978
Term deposit with ather banks:
- rated AAA - 139,126
- rated from AA- to AA+ 4,153,203 -
- rated from A-to A+ - 3,553,546
- rated from B-to B+ 39,945 -
Total term deposits with ather banks 4,193,148 3,693,072
Less: loss allowance 154} {18}
Tetal term deposil with other banks 4,193,094 3,693,054
Notes of the Natienal Bank of the Ryrgyz Republic - 429,410
Less: loss allowance - 1282}
— - = ot ezeaE
- Securities sold under agreement to repurchase - 20420
Less: loss allowance - {4}
- Securities sold under ag to repurchase - 20 416
Total cash and cash Ival 12,384,660 10,622 258

The credit ratings are presented by reference to the credit ratings of Standard & Poor's credit rating
agency or analogues of similar international agencies.

On 31 December 2021, the Bank did not have a short-term deposit at the NBKR.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Bank has four banks (31 December 2020: three banks), other than NBKR,
whose balances individually exceed 10% of equity. The gross value of these balances as at

31 December 2021 is KGS 7,354,044 thousand 2020: KGS 4,744,704 thousand).

As at 31 December 2021, the Bank has one bank (31 December 2020: one bank), other than NBKR, whose
balance individually exceed 10% of total maxirmum risk exposura. The gross value of these balances as at
31 December 2021 is KGS 4,667,977 thousand {31 December 2020: KGS 3,932,637 thousand).

For fulfilling reserve requirements in accordance with the National Bank, amount of cash on
corresponding accounts on a daily basis should be at least 70% of the required reserves of the Bank as at
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 accordingly. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, balances with
the NBKR include KGS 1,696,136 thousand and KGS 1,522,814 thousand, respectively, comprising
obligatory reserves in the NBKR. The Bank’s ability to withdraw from such zccounts is not rastricted by
the Kyrgyz legislation.

The following table shows reconciliations from opening and closing balances of the loss allowance on
cash and cash equivalents.

2021 = _ Stagel Stage 2 Total

Cash and cash equivalants

Balance at 1 lanuary 703 23 768
Net remeasurement of loss allowance [268) 5 (203}
New financial assets orlginated or purchased 56 - 56
Foreign exchange and other mavements — 12} 1] (3}
Balance at 31 December - 489 69 558
2020 Stage1 Stage 2 Total
Cash and cash equivalents

Balance at 1 January 2,249 1,025 3,278
Met remeasurement of loss allowance {1,885} {977) (2,862}
Mew financial assets originated or purchasad 322 - 322
Forelgn exchange and other movemants 17 13 30
Balance at 31 Dacember 703 &5 768
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14.

15,

Loans and advances to banks

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
Loans and advances to banks R B
- rated from Ad- {0 AA+ B2,457 80,365
- rated from A- to A+ 2,845 8,624
- rated BEEB 509 496
- rated from B+ to B- 3,435,471 3,732,227
3,527,282 3,821,712
Less — Loss allowance [14,356) t16,60?_:|
Total loans and advanres to banks 3,512,926 3,805,105

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, loans and advances to banks included accrued interest of
KGS 23,074 thousand and KGS 20,953 thousands, respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the Bank has five bank accounts {31 December 2020: six bank accounts), whose
baiances exceed 10% of the Bank’s equity, The gross value of these balances as at
31 December 2021 is KGS 2,731,606 thousand (31 December 2020: KGS 2,821,509 thousand).

As at 31 Decamber 2021 and 2020, part of funds for the amount of KGS 191,571 and KGS 202,641
thousand respectively included into loans and advances to banks are pledged as collateral deposit for the
borrowing from National Bank of the Kyrgyz Republic with maturity till end of May 2022 and May 2021
{Note 22}, These funds are placed at the National Bank of the Kyrgyz Republic at 0%.

Loans to customers
As at 31 December 2021, the tota! loans and advances to customers balance is comprised of 85%

corporate and SME customers at amortized cost, and 15% retail customers at amortised cost
{31 December 2020: 6% and 14%).
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Loans to customers comprise:

21 December 31 Degember
2021 2020
Loans to corporate customers
Loans to Carporates 0,466,215 7,650,304
Laans to SME 1,543,_542 1,169,767
Totalloans corporate customers 11,009,757 8,820,571
Loans retail customers — i
Muortgage loans 950, 002 703,161
Consumer loans 851,440 504,665
Credit cards 245,407 200,715
Tatal loans to retail customers 2,046,849 1,498,541
Gross loans to customers 13,456,606 10,319,112
Loss allowance o [344,594) 1319.063)
Net loans to customers 12,712,007 10,000,049
The analysis of changes for loan expected credit losses is presented in the table below:
Loans to Loans to Mortgage Cansumer
Corporates SME loans loans Lredit cards Tatal
As at 1 January 2013 130,345 32,951 11,475 4,292 17,602 196,655
Provision charge 31,558 53,054 22,909 21,512 37,843 166876
Repayment of igans {27,895) 114,273) (6,720) {4,629] (29,338) {82,855}
Foreign exchange and other
movements 28,003 4,481 2,857 1,330 _ 1,700 - 33,377
As at 31 December 2020 162,017 76,213 30,521 22,505 27,807 319,063
Frovisian charge 46,784 789 17,788 8,721 5559 20,681
Bad deht written-off . - - E] - £}
Repayment of loans (17,258} [24,689) (10,017} 19,337) 13,321) (65,162)
Foreign exchange and other
_moverments 8,154 357 {31) 185 1,355 10,020
As at 31 December 2021 199,657 52,670 38,261 22,571 31,340 344,599
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The table below summarises an analysis of loans to customers by type of impairment:

Financial assets that have 31 December
Flnancial assets that have been individually assessed for been collectively assessed 2021
impairment for impairrmant Total
Unimpafred financial
assets Impaired financial assels

Amount of Amaunt of Amount of
allowance allowance allowanze
Gross for Gross tor Gross for
amount of  impafrment ampuntof  impairment amount of  impairment
— assets losses _assets losses assets losses
Loans to
Lustamers 5,266,077 |16, 557} 1,868,954 130,508) 5,921,570 {297, 534) 12,712, 007
31 Pecembe
Financial assets that have r
Finantial assets that have been individually assessed for been collectively assessed 2020
impairment for impainment Yotal
Unrimpaired financlal assets Impaired financial assets
Amount of Amount of Amount of
allowance allowance allowance
Grass for Gross for Gross for
amount of  impairment amount of  Impairment amount of  impainment
assels logses agsets  losses assets Insses
Loans to
customers 2,068,160 12,1179 2,410,966 {74,746} 5,539,986 (242,200} 10,000,049

As at 31 December 2021 loans totaling KGS 7,135,036 thousand that were individually assessed {as at
31 December 2020: KGS 4,479,126) and collateralised by pledge of real estate, equipment, motor
vehicles, inventaries, and secured by EBRD guarantees,

For other disclosures on loans to customers, see note 26.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, loans to customers included accrued interest
of KGS 130,148 thousand and KGS 143,087 thousand, respectively,

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, loans to customers, which were restructured during 2021 and 2020
respectively, that otherwise would be overdue or impaired are presented as follows:

2021 2020
Gross loans to customers 2,059,577 5,225,479
Impairment allowance 129,8886) {36,796}
Met lgans to customers 2,029,691 5,142,683

As at 31 Decernber 2021 loans to customers in the outstanding amount of KGS 17,249 thousand
{2020: 32,487) are pledged as collateral for the borrowing from Russian-Kyrgyz Development Fund
{Note 22).
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As at 31 December 2021 the Bank has four borrowers or groups of connacted borrowers

{31 December 2020: 7} whose loan balances exceed 10% of equity. The gross value of these loans as at
31 December 2021 is KG5 2,217,582 thousand (31 December 2020: KGS 2,610,272 thousand).

The table below surmmarizes carrying value of loans to customers analyzed by type of collateral obtained

by the Bank:
31 Decernber 31 December

20_21 2020
Laans tollateralised by pledge of real estate 10,637,501 8,505,717
Loans collateralised by cash and EBRD guarantees 628,034 573,548
Unsecured loans 513,770 457,203
Loans collateralised by pledee of motor vehicles 337,131 247,184
Loans collateralised by pledge of equipment 212,375 145,733
Other collateral 627,395 389,727
Gross loans te customers 13,056,606 16,319,112
Less: allowance for expected credit Iosses 1344,599) (319,053}
Total lgans to custormers 12,712,007 10,000,049

*Other coltateral includes commedity and other personal property, corporate and individual guarantees

Repossessed collateral

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Bank obtained certain assets by taking possession of

collateral for loans to customers with a gross carrying amount of KGS 6,302 thousand (2020:

KGS 1,487 thousand). As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the repossessed collaterals comprisa:

31 Decernber 2021 31 Becember 2020

Total repassessed collateral, net 167,557 216,712
The Bank’s pelicy is to sell these assets as scon as 1t is practicable,
An analysis of the Bank’s credit risk concentrations per sector is provided below.

31 December 31 December
Analysis by sector: 2021 2020
Frade 4,529,156 2,858,245
Services 2,814,213 3,304,931
Manufacturlng 2,168,078 1,385.894
Lpans to individuals 2,045,349 1,458, 541
Canstruction 1,080,281 1,202,872
Other 317,929 68,629
Gross loans to customers 13,056,606 10,319,112
Less: oss allowance (244,599} {318,063)
Total loans to customers 12,712,007 14,000,049
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16. Investment securities at amortized cost

31 Decerber 31 December
. WAIR 2421 WAIR 2020
Investment securltias ot omortised cost
Treasury Bonds of the Ministry of Finance of the
¥yrgyz Republic BA% 212,371 B.4% 206,139
Less: loss allawance (1,940} {3.991)
Total Investment securities at amortized cost 210431 202,148

As at 31 December 2021 Invastment securities at amortized cost include three year treasury boands of the
Ministry of Finance of the Kyrgyz Republic denominated in KGS with a maturity during 2022-2023. Part of
these securities for the amount of KGS 11,813 thousand are pledged as collateral for the borrowing from
Russian-Kyrgyz Development Fund {Note 22).

As at 31 December 2020 Investment securities at amortized cost include three year treasury bonds of the
Ministry of Finance of the Kyrpyz Republic denominated in KGS with a maturity during 2022-2023. Part of
these securities for the amount of KGS 11,813 thousand are pledged as collateral for the borrowing from
Russian-Kyrgyz Development Fund {Mote 22).

(a) Credit quality of investment securities

31 December 2021 31 Dacernber 2020
Investrent securities ot amortised cost Stage 1 Total Stage L Tatat
Rated B 212,371 212,371 206,129 206,139
Loss allowanee {1,940} (1,940 (3,591) {3.991)
Carrying amaount 210,431 210,431 202,148 202,148

{8 Analysis of movements in the credit loss allowance

The following table shows reconciliations from opening and closing balances of the loss allowance on
investment securities.

Jip ber 2021 3L ber 2020
Stage 1 Taotal Stage 1 Total
Investment securities ot omortised cost
Balance at 1 January 3591 3,90 789 39
Net remeasurement of loss allowance {2,051} {2,051} 58} [98)
New financial assets orlglnated or purchased - - 3,300 3.300
Bal at 310 b 1,540 1,340 3,991 3,991
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Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CISC
Notes to the financial statements {continued)

for the year ended 31 Decernber 2021
{in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

18. Right-of-use assets

The Bank leases office premises. The leases period vary from 2 to 10 years, with an option to renew the
tease after that date in the most of agreements, Some leases provide for additional rent payments that
are based on changes in local price indices, For certain leases, the Bank is restricted from entering into
any sub-lease arrangements.

Information about leases for which the Bank is a lessee is presented below.
{i) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets related to leased properties that do not meet the definition of investment property
are presented helaw,

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
. 2021 2020
Buildings Buildings
Cost
Balance at 1 January 193,093 164,637
Medifications 152,382 -
Additions 7627 34,178
Disposale {76,659} {5,722}
Balance at 31 December 276,343 193,093
Depreciatlon and amortisation
Balance at 1 January 120,645 55,491
Depreciation for the year 65,037 65,154
s pasals 176,653) -
Balance at 31 December 109,023 120,645
Carrylng amount -
At 31 Decernber 167,323 72,048

During 2021 the Bank has 1 new agreement {2020: 1 agreements) racognized under IFRS 16. Also during
2021 the Bank has 1 agreements {2020: 2) under IFRS 16 written-off due to termination of lease
agreement and change of location of archive premises,

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented in Note 23.
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{it Amounts recognised in prafit or loss

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2021 2w

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets {65,037) (65,154)

Interest expense on lease liahilities {10,275} (15,892}

Expense relating to short-term leases (7,494} {8,566}

The total cash outflow for leases amount 1o KGS 75,315 thousand (2020: KGS 21,046 thousand).
19. Other assets

31 December 31 December
- 2021 7020

Money transfer receivables 512,856 150,454
Qther receivables 68,046 47,802

Less: loss allowance (22,490} {12,006)
Total pther financlal assets 558452 186,250
Fareclased property 167,557 216,712
Materials and supplies 124,339 93,136
Prepayments 52,503 50,242
Dther advances 5,529 8,343
Taxes other than income tax 7,179 1,478
Total other non-financial assets o 357,407 72911
Total other assets 915,859 555,161

Movements in the loss allowance for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

31 December 31 December
- 2021 WK
Balance at the beginning of the year 12,006 7.808
Charge far the year [Note 7) 10,444 3,641
Write-offs 12 {E7}
Effect of foreign currency translation 52 354
Ralance at the end of the year 22,490 12,006
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20. Due to banks

31 December

- 2021
Due to banks

- rated AAA 171,169
- rated below B+ 61
- not rated 5,815
Total due to banks = L)

31 December
2020

12,563
74
4,470

17,107

As ar 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Bank does not have deposits and balances from banks or financial

institutions, whose balances exceed 10% of equity.

21. Current accounts and deposits from customers

31 December 31 December
- 2021 2020
{urrent accounts and deposits from corporate customers
- Current accounts and demand deposits 10,073,326 7814714
- Term deposits 251,299 165,036
Total current accounts and deposits from corporate customers 10,324,625 7,979,750
Current accounts and dep '_frnm retail cust
- Current accounts and dermand deposits 12,121,542 10,372,254
- Term deposits . 3,195,422 3,136,999
Taotal current accounts and deposits from retail customers 15,320,964 13,509,253
Tatal current accounts and deposits from customers 25,645,589 21,489,003

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, customer accounts included accrued interest expense of
KGS 118,065 thousand and KGS 101,570 thousand, respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the Bank maintained customer deposit balances of KGS 84,621 thousand
{31 December 2020: KGS 442,108 thousand} that serve as colatera! for loans and guarantees granted by

the Bank.

As at 31 December 2021, the Bank has two customers, whose balances excead 10% of equity. These

balances as at 31 December 2021 are KGS 856,500 thousand {2020: nc customers).
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An analysis of the Bank’s risk concentrations per sector is provided below,

31 December 31 Pecember
N 2021 2020

Analysis by sector;
Individuals 15,319,877 13,508,488
Trade 2,709,576 2,127,792
Services 2,058,378 1,927,000
Manufacturing 1,068,290 767,734
Construction 1,042,287 567916
Geology and Mining 734,556 467,917
Transport and Communication 513212 318192
Exterritarial arganizations 269,344 272,581
State organizations 208,404 1512494
Electricity, gas and water supply 206,545 100,547
Public funds and charity arganizations 103,263 85,252
Tourism 71,615 1.394
Apriculture 43,833 62,636
Culture and art 29,419 23577
Other 1,251,350 1,097,677
Tatal currgnt accounts and deposits from customers 25,645,589 21,489,003
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22. Other borrowed funds

31 December 31 December

Counterparty _ Eurrency interest rate  Maturity date 2021 2020
EBRD - KyrSEFF11-2, 2019 Lisp 5,55% 21-0B-2023 90,246 145,166
EBRD - Kyrseff 1I, 2019, €3 KG5 11.05% 11-12-2023 92,966 139,450
EBRD - KyrSEFF 1]-2, 2019 KGS 10.78% 19-06-2023 60,087 100,203
EERD - KyrSEFF 1, 2016 [C-2) KGS 10.93% 31-10-2022 26,426 52,852
EBRD - Kyrseff 1), 2019, €1 KGs 11.12% 11-12-2023 21,343 32,015
EBRD - Kyrseff 1|, 2019, C2 KGS 11.12% 11-12-20123 21,343 32,015
EBRD - KyrSEFF 11, 2016 {C-1) KG5 10.93% 31-10-2022 16,174 32,347
EERD - KyrSEFF |1, 2016 {4} KG5 10,63 01-12-2021 - 29,553
EERD - KyrSEFF |1, 2016 {B) KG5 10.6% q1-12-2021 - 29533

22%+

EBRD - KyrSEFF |1 {Tranche B} KOS &M Thills 12-02-2021 - 22,273
) 337,585 615427
Ministry of Finance, Kfwy KG&S 4.75% 13-06-2025 18,385 23,835
Ministry of Finance, Kfw KGS 4.75% 13-08-2025 7934 16,232
Ministry of Finance, Kfw KGS 4.50% 13-06-2025 16,150 20,311
Ministry of Finance, Kfw KG&S 4.25% 13-06-2025 31,815 - 41,&
74,284 96,138

Russian-Kyrgyt Developrment Fune usp 1% 26-10-2(23 7.543 11,042
Russian-Kyrgyt Developrment Fured usp 1% 16-07-2(24 11,322 14,720
Russian-Kyrgyz Devalopment Fund usD 1% 29.07-2024 11,322 14,720
30,192 40,482

State Mortgage Company KGS 3% 20-11-2028 2,347 2,608
State Mortgage Company KGS A% 05-05-2028 2,244 2,514
State Mortgage Company KGS 6% 13-08-2027 1,504 2,157
State Mortgage Company KGS 4% 21.02-2028 1,022 2,161
State Mortgage Company KGS 3% 08-12-2028 1172 1301
State Mortgage Company KGS &% 17-05-2027 701 307
State Mortgage Company KGS 4% 11-05-2028 - 31>
State Martgage Cornpany KGS 3% 04-12-2028 538 5587
State Mortgage Company KGS 3% 01-02-202% 2,114 2,324
State Mortgage Company KGS 3% 03-05-202% 603 )
State Mortgage Company KGS 3% 07-05-202% L047 1,152
State Mortgage Company KGS 5% 03-05-2029 1368 1,493
State Mortgage Company KGS % 21-05-2029 1,189 1,310
State Mortgage Company KG5 5% 21-05-2029 1,483 1,679
State Mortgage Company KGS 4% 04-0g-2029 459 503
State Mortgage Company KG5 3% 14-06-2029 1,424 1,569
State Mortgage Company KGS 2% 12-12-2029 £88 972
State Mortpage Company KGS % 21-10-2030 o953 1,037
State Mortgage Company KGS 2% 06-10-2028 1,175 1,310
- 23,544 26,973

National Bank of the Kyrgyz Republic KGS 5% 30-05-2022 66842 115,579
Total othar borrowed funds 532,447 54,599
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Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

—— 2021 2020
Balance at 1 January B94,50% 201476
Changes from financing cash flows

Praceeds from other borrowed funds - 385,797
Repayment of other borrawed funds (362,291} {325,421}
Total changes from financing cash flows _ (352,291) — 50,376
The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates 4,518 35,114
Total changes in interest payahle o {4,374} 12,367}
Total non-cash changes 139 33,747
Balance at 31 December 532447 894,599

The Bank has received other borrowed funds from the European Bank for Reconstruction and
Development under Energy efficiency program (KyrSEFF), which the Bank has joined in 2013. Purpose of
the program is financing of corporate, small and medium enterprises, and also retail custormners far
energy and water efficiency in various sectors: industry, construction, trade, consumer loans for enargy
efficiency improvements of residential immavable property. The bank issued loans to borrowers, efigible
to participate in the program and to receive the grant from EBRD, with interest rate to retail at 20% p.a
and to SME in USD from 13% to 17% p.a and in KGS from 20% p.a to 24% p.a., with maturity not
exceading 5 years.

The Bank has received other borrowed funds from the Russian-Kyrgyz Development Fund on special
purpose financing of small and medium enterprises, development of leasing operations and agricultural
sector. The bank issued laans to borrewers, eligible to participate in the program, at 5% p.a. with
maturity not exceeding 5 years.

As at 31 December, 2021 Investment securities at amortised cost for the amount of KGS 11,813 thousand
and |oans to customers in the outstanding amount of XG5 17,249 thousand are pledged as collateral for
the borrowing fram Russian-Kyrgyz Development Fund {Note 15; Note 16).

As at 31 December, 2020 Investment securities at amortized cost for the amount of KGS 11,813 thousand
and Inans to custarmers in the cutstanding amount of KGS 32,487 thousand are pledged as collateral for
the borrowing from Russian-Kyrgyz Development Fund {Note 15; Mote 16).

The Bank has received other borrowed funds from the Ministry of Finance jointly with KPW under the
Gevernment program [“Agro business and Marketing”) on special purpase financing for agricultural
sector. According to the agreement between the Ministry of Finance and the Bank, the Bank issues loans
to agricuftural sector borrowers, eligible to participate in the Program, at 8% p.a. interest rate with the
maturity not exceeding 5 years.

The Bank also received other borrowed funds from the State Mortgage Company under the Governmeant
Program (“Affordable Housing 2015 to 2020 years”) on special purpase financing of martgage products.
According to the agreement hetween the State Mortgage Company, the Bank issues loans to borrowers,
eligible to participate in the program, with the maturity not exceeding 10 years.
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23,

The Bank has received borrowing from the National Bank of the Kyrgyz Republic under Credit auctien on
special purpose financing for business entities in order te smooth out the negative economic
conseguences of the spread of COVID-19, According to the agreement between the National Bank and
the Bank, the Bank issues loans to business sector borrowers, eligible to participate in the Program, at
interest rate not exceeding 10% p.a. with the maturity not exceeding 4 years. Collateral deposit of

KGS 191,571 thousand [2020: KGS 202,641 thousand) is pledged for the horrowing from NBKR {Note 14).

Management of the Bank believes that there are no other financial instruments similar to the other
borrowed funds received from Russian-Kyrgyz Development Fund, Ministry of Finance, State Mortgage
Company and due to specific nature of clients, these products represent a separate market.

The Bank is obfigated to comply with financial covenants in relation to funds and loans from banks and
other financial instituticns. These covenants include stipulated ratios, debt to equity ratios and various
other financial performance ratios. As at 31 December 2021, the Bank was not in compliance with open
credit exposure ratio covenant under [oan agreemant with EBRD and four other covenants under loan
agreements with RKDF due to the impact of COVID-19 on the quality of the Bank’s assets.

On 1 December 2021 and 20 January 2022 , the Bank obtained a waiver from EBRD to comply with the
covenant as at 31 December 2021. The Bank obtained waiver from RKDF on 24 December 2021 and

25 February 2023.

As at 31 December 2020, the Bank was not in compliance with open cradit exposure ratio covenant

under loan agreement with EBRD and two other covenants under loan agreements with RKDF due to the
impact of COVID-19 on the quality of the Bank's assets,

Lease liabilities

21 December 31 December
2021 2020

Maturity analysis:
Year 1 62,900 57,043
Year 2 58,185 32,365
Year 3 35,786 14,461
Yeard 23,112 5053
Year5 9,908 1,147
= il 189,891 110,575
Less: unearned interest — {19,359) (13,202}
Total lease liabilities 170,532 97,773

Analysed as:

Hon-currant 116,073 47,367
Curreng —_— 54,459 50,406
Total lease liabillties 170,532 97,773

The Bank does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are
monitored within the Bank’s treasury function,
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24, Other liabilities

31 Pecember 31 December
2021 2020
Accrued operating and personnel expanses 118,896 94,705
Other financial liabilities 7204 7.025
Subsidies received o 5,137 1,012
Total other financial liabilitiss 131,237 102,749
Other non-finanelal kabilities 34,428 29,180
Taxes, other than intame tax 31,789 7,694
Deferred tax liability 25,778 16,428
Current income tax liabllity 5,630 9,142
Provision for guarantees and loan commitments 21,513 6,686
Total other non-financial ltabilities 139,138 69,130
Tatal other liabilities 270,375 171,E79
Movements in the loss allowance of guarantees and loan committement for the years ended
31 December are as follows:
31 Decamber 31 December
- — 2021 2020
Balance at the beglnming of the year 6,686 4,562
Charge of provisians 19,638 1870
Effect of foraign currency translation 189 254
Balance at the end of the year 21,513 6,686

25. Share capital and reserves

Issued capital ond shore premium

The authorised, issued and outstanding share capital comprises 2,000,000 ardinary shares and

600,000 ordinary shares as at 31 Dacember 2021 and 2020, respectively. In 2021, based on decision of
the shareholder made on 30 March 2021, the Bank increased ordinary shares by 1,400,000 pieces at their
nominal value through the transfer of the amount of KGS 1,400,000 thousand from retained earnings to

share capital. All shares have a nominal value of KGS 1,000.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are

entitled to one vote per share at annual and general meetings of the Bank,
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26,

Dividends

The NBKR sets for the Bank individual requirement of capital buffer at the level of not less than 20% as at
31 December 2021 (2020: not less than 20%). The Bank’s capital buffer as at 31 December 2021 was
14.43% (2020: 16.20%). According to NBKR Instruction “On establishment of capital adequacy standards
for commercial banks of the Kyrgyz Republic” approved by the Resclution No.18/2 dated 21 July 2004 of
the Board of the NBXR {last revised on 27 December 2019}, banks are not allowed to make decision an
dividends distribution, if the capital buffer, calculated by deducting dividends planned for payment, is
below the capital buffer limit established by the NBKR. There are no ather restrictions and prescriptions
fer non-compliance with capital buffer requirement. At the reporting date, no dividends were declared
(31 December 2020: null} to the shareholders.

Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary
shareholders and weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding calculated as follows:

31 Dezemnber 31 December

202 0
Net profit attributable to ardinary shareholders 518,833 382,058
Weighted average number of ordinary shares, share 2,000,000 600,000
Earnings per sharg, in KGS 259 185

There were no potentially dilutive shares for the year ended 31 December 2021 znd 2020.

Risk management

Management of risk is fundamental to the business of banking and is an essential element of the Bank’s
operaticns. The major risks faced by the Bank are those related to market risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk.

(a) Risk management policies and procedures

The risk management policies aim to identify, analyze and manage the risks faced by the Bank, 1o set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to continugusly menitor risk levels and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and procedures are raviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions,
praducts and services offered and emerging best practice.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the oversight of the risk management framewark,
overseeing the management of key risks and reviewing its risk management policies and proceduras as
well as approving significantly large exposures.

In order to assist the Board of Directors of the bank in determining the priority directions of the bank’s
activities in the area of banking risks and to assist in creating conditions for proper risk management, the
Bank established a Risk Management Committee (hereinafter - CRC). Members of the CRC are members
of the Board of Directors.
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The Management Board is responsible for monitoring and implementation of risk mitigation measures
and making sure that the Bank operates within the estabfished risk parameters. The Head of the Risk
Management Department is respensible for the overall risk management and caompliance functions,
ensuring the implementation of commaon principles and methods for identifying, measuring, managing
and reporting both financial and nen-financial risks, He reports directly to the Board of Directors. Credit,
market and figuidity risks both at the portfolio and at transactional levels are managed and controlled
through a system of Credit Cornmittees and an Asset and Liability Management Cammittee (ALCQ). In
order to facilitate efficient and effective decision-making, the Bank established a hierarchy of credit
committees depending on the type and amount of the exposure.

Both external and internal risk factors 2re identified and managed throughout the organization, Particular
attention is given to identifying the full range of risk factors and determination of the level of assurance
over the current risk mitigation procedures. Apart from the standard credit and market risk analysis, the
Risk Management Department monitors financial and non-financial risks by holding regular meetings
with operational units in order to cbtain expert judgments in their areas of expertise.

(b} Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
kecause of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risks. Market risk arises from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity financial
instruments, which are exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the level of
volatility of market prices and foreign currency rates, The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, whilst optimizing the return on
risk.

Overall authaority for market risk is vested in the ALCO, which is chaired by the Chief Executive Officer.
Market risk limits are approved by the Board based on recommendations of the Risk Management
Department and ALCO.

The Bank manages its market risk by setting open position limits in relation to financial instruments,
interest rate maturity and currency positions. These are monitored an a regular basis and reviewad and
appraved by the Board of Directors.

{f]  Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Bank is expased ta the effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing levels of market interest rates on its financial position and cash flows. Intarest margins may
increase as a result of such changes but may also reduce or create losses in the event that unexpercted
movements occur.
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Average interest rotes

The table below displays average effective interest rates for interest bearing assets and liabilities as at
31 December 2021 and 2020. These interest rates are an approximation of the yields to maturity of these
assets and liabilities.

2021 2020
Average effective Interest rate, % Average effactive interest rate, %
Other Cther
KGS usp currencies KGS Usp currancles
Interest bearing assets
Lash and cash equivafents - 014 6.18 3.54 0.05 -
Loans and advances ta banks - 1.47 - - 1.60 1.27
Loans to customers 13.99 8.22 5.8 13.99 829 5.88
Investment securities at
amortized cost R.3% - - 261 - -
Investment securitias at
FYTCLC) - - - 6,57 - -
Interest bearing liabilities -
- Term deposits 9.21 173 4.17 938 1.86 410
Other barrowed funds £.34 5.23 - 2.83 5.32 -

Interest rate sensitivity onalysis

The management of interest rate risk based on interest rate gap analysis is supplemented by monitaring
the sensitivity of financial assets and liabilities. An analysis of sensitivity of profit or loss and equity {net of
taxes) to changes in interest rate repricing risk based on a simplified scenaric of a 100 basis point {bp}
symmetrical fall or rise in 3l yield curves and positions of interest-bearing assets and liabilities existing as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

31 December 31 December

= 2021 2020

Profit Frofit

or loss or loss

100 bp parallet fall 54,045 51,769
100 bp parallel rise {54,049) (51,765

{ii Currency risk
The Bank has assets and liabilities denominated in several foreign currencies.
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrurment will fluctuate

because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Although the Bank hedges its exposure to currency risk,
such activities do not qualify as hedging relationships in accordance with IFRS.
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The following table shows the foreign currency exposure structure of financial assets and liabilities as at

31 December 2021:

Other
KGs usp currencies Tetal

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivatents 3,544,463 7,343,723 1,496,474 12,384 660
Loans and advances to banks - 3,322,893 190,033 3,512926
Loans to custamers 3,332,942 3,325,179 53,3856 12,712,007
Inyestmant securities at amortlsad cost 210,421 - - 210,431
Other financial assets 151,344 370,056 37,052 558,452
Total assets 13,239,180 14,261,851 1,777,245 29378476
LIABILITIES
Dua to banks 161,256 7,750 8,034 177,045
Current accounts and deposits from

custpmers 9.5972,967 13,936,693 1,736,429 25,645,582
Other borrowed funds 403,007 128,440 - 532,447
Lease liabilities 85,096 £5,436 - 170,532
Other financial liabilities 86,291 37,241 7,705 131,237
Total ITabiities 10,708,117 14,136,560 1,752,173 25,656,850
et position as at 31 Decamber 2021 2,531,063 165,291 25,272 2,721,626
The following table shows the currency structure of financial assets and liabilities as at
31 December 2020:

Other
KGS ush currencles Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3,962,122 5,613,408 1,046,738 10,622,268
Loans and advances ta banks - 3,402,137 401,968 3,805,105
Laans to customers B,726,361 3,213,095 60,593 10,000,049
Investrment securities at amartized cost 202,148 - - 202,148
Investment securkties at FYOCT 74,171 - - 74,171
Other financlal assets 95,882 65,349 24,019 186,250_
Total assets 11,060,684 12,295,989 1,533,318 24,889,991
LIABILITIES
Due to banks 4,015 &,1a7 6,545 17,107
Current aceounts and depasits fram

tustormers 8,194,638 11,824,723 1,469,644 21,485,003
Other borrowed funds 708,952 185,647 - 854,559
Leasa Liahility 57,238 40,535 a7,773
Other financial llabilities 63,541 30,885 8,323 102,749
Total liabilities 9,028,382 12,087,937 1,484,912 22,601,231
Net position as at 31 December 2020 2,052,302 208,052 48,406 2,288,760

Other foreign currencies mainly comprise EUR.

An appreciation of the USD, as indicated below, against the following currencies at 31 December 2021
and 2020 would have increased {decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This
analysis is on a net of 10% tax basis and is based on foreign currency exchange rate variances that the
Bank considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period. The analysis assumes that
all ather variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant,
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31 December 2021
30% appreciation of USD against KGS
30% appreciation of other currencies agalnst KGS

31 December 2020
20% appreciation of USD agalnst KGS
20% appreciation of other currencias against KGS

Profit or loss
44,628
6,823

Prafit or loss
37,445
8,713

Equity
24,629
6,823

Equh_y
37,449
8,713

A weakening of the USD against the above currencies at 31 December 2021 and 2020 would have had the
equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that ail

other variables remain constant.

[e) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Bank if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails 10 meet its contractual obligations. The Bank has policies and procedures for the management of
credit exposures (both for recognised financial assets and unrecognised contractual commitments),
including guidelinas to limit portfclio concentration and the establishment of a Credit Committee, which
actively monitors credit risk. The credit pelicy is reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors.

The tables below analyze information about the significant changes in the gross carrying amaunt of cash
equivalents during the period that contributed to changes in the expected credit loss allowance as well

as the movement of the loss allowance during the 2020 and 2021 per class of financial assets:

Srape 1 Stage 2
12.month ECL Lifetime ECL Total

Cash equivalents at amortized cost*
Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2020 5,369,318 B5,083 8,554,401
New financiat assets originated or purchased 4,862,198 - 4,862,199
Financial assets that have been derecognized 15,293,093} - 15,253,993}
Other changes - 187,563 - (61,801} 105,762
Gross carrying amount as at

31 December 2020 2,225,087 3,282 8,223,369
New financial assets originated er purchased 6,436,590 2,352 6,438,942
Financial assets that have been derecognized {4,671,623) . 44,671,623}
Other changes 11,891 {103] 11,888
Gross ca?rvin_g amount as at

31 December 2021 16,002,045 5,531 10,007 576
Loss allowance as at

31 December 2021 {430} {63 {558)

*amounts does not inctude cash on hand balances

i1}
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The tables helow analyze information about the significant changes in the gross carrying amount of icans
ta banks during the period that contributed to changes in the loss allowance as well as the movement
of the loss allowance during the 2020 and 2021 per class of financial assats:

Stage 1
12-month ECL Total

Loans and advances to banks at amortised cost
Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2020 2,562,379 2,562,379
Mew financial assets originated ar purchased 3,792,227 3,732,227
Financial assets that have been derecopnized (2,487.422) 12,487,422}
Other changes 14,528 14,528
Grass carrying amount as at =l

ap '_ 2020 3,821,712 3,821,712
New financial assets ariginated or purchased 3,243,900 3,243,900
Financial assets that have been derecognised {3,525,586) [3,529,586)
Other changes [8,744) (2,744
Gross carrying amount as at

31 December 2021 3,527.282 3,527,282
Loss allowance as at

31 December 2021 {14,356} {14,356)

The analysis of changes of the loss allowance on loans and advances to banks is presented in the table

below:
Stage 1 Stage 2
12-month ECL _ Lifetime ECL Total

Lass allowance - Loans and advances to banks at amortised

ot
Loss allowance as at 1 January 2020 28,162 28,162
Changes In the lass allowance
Mew financial assets originated or purchased 15,912 - 15512
Finantial assets that have been derecoghized {31,567) - 131,567}
Foreign exchange and other movernents 4,100 - 4,100
Losgs allowance as at 31

December 2020 16,607 — - 16,607
Changes In the lass allowance
Mew financial assets ordglnated or purchased 12,816 - 12,816
FInancial assets that have been derecognized (15,2104 - {15,310}
Foreign exchange and other movements 243 - 243
Loss allowance as at

December 2071 14,356 - 14,356
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The credit policy estahlishes:

procedures for review and approval of lean credit applications;

methodology for the credit assessment of borrowers (corporate and retail);

methodology for the credit assessment of counterparties, issuers and insurance companies;
methodology for the evaluation of collateral;

cradit decumentation reguirements; and

proceduras Ter the ongeing menitaring of loans and other credit exposures.

" 4 9 ¥ & &

Corporate loan credit applications are originated by the relevant client managers and are then passed on
to the Credit Department, which is responsible for the loan portfalio and lean products. Analysis reports
are based on a structured analysis focusing on the customer’s business and financial performance. The
Credit Committee reviews the laan credit application on the basis of submissions by the Cradit
Department.

The Bank continuously monitars the perfoermance of individual credit exposures and regularly reassesses
the creditworthiness of its customers. The review is based on the customer’s most recent financial
staternents and other information submitted by the barrower, or atherwise obtained by the Bank. Retail
loan credit applications are reviewed by Credit Department.

Apart from individual customer analysis, the credit portfolio is assessed by the Risk Management
Drepartment with regard to credit concentration and market risks,

The Bank classifies the loans o customers into the following categories based on the number of overdue
days:

Category 1 —overdue less than 7 days;

Categary 2 —overdue from 7 to 30 days;

Category 3 —overdue from 30 to 60 days or high probability that under renegotiated terms due to
restructuring, the horrower will be able to meet his abligations;

Category 4 —overdue from 60 to 90 days;

Category 5 —overdue more than 90 days or low probability that under renegotiated terms due to
restructuring the borrower will be abla to meet his obligations.

Initial classification of the restructured loan by stages is made at the and of the quarter in which the
restructuring took place, based on the credit analysis and classification proposed in Credit Proposal.

If the Bank estimates that there is a high probability that restructuring will improve the financial
perfoermance of the borrower and he will be able to meet his obligations to the Bank under renegotiated
terms, then such loan is classified as Category 3 (Stage 2). Otherwise, the loan is classified into Category 5
{Stage 3).
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Wherein, a restructured loan is zutematically classified into Catepory 5 {Stage 3) if at least one of the

following criteria is met:

- overdue days at the moment of approval of a restructure is 90 days or more [taking into account the

approval period of the restructured loan).
- debt service ratio is less than 100%.

The fellowing table provides information on the credit quality of loans to customers as at

31 Decernber 2021 and 31 December 2020.

31 December 2021 .
Stage 1 Staga 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifatime ECL Lifetime ECL Tatal
Loars to customers of omortised cost
Category 1 10,642,503 - 10,642,909
Categary 2 52,927 - 52,927
Categary 3 - 334,433 - 334,433
Category 4 - 677,056 - 677,056
Category 5 o - 1,349,281 1,345,281
Total loans to customers 10,695,835 1,011,489 1,349,281 13,056,506
Loss allowance (86,347} (18,110} (240,142} {344,559}
Loans to cush net of loss all ce 14,609,489 953,379 1,105,139 12,712,007
31 December 2020
Stage 1 Staga 2 Stage 3
— 12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total
Loons to customers ot omaortised cost
Category 1 7,088,204 - - 7,008,204
Categary 2 207,781 - - 207,781
Catepory 3 2,006,192 2,006,192
Catepory 4 - 47,035 - 47,035
Category5 - - 959,900 955,900
Total loans to customers 7,305,985 2,053,227 959,500 12,319,112
Loss allowance {64, 498] (53,60%) _ (200860)  (319,063]
Loans tp pusty net of loss all e 7,241,487 £,999,622 758,540 10,000,043
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The tables below analyse information about the significant changes in the gross carrying amount of loans
to customers during the period that contributed to changes in the loss allowance as well as the
movernent of the loss allowance during the 2020 and 2021:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetlme ECL Total

Loans ta customers at amaortised cost
GTOss Carying amount as at
1 january 2020 8,448,357 241,283 410,509 9,100,145
Changes in the gross carrying amount
- Transfer to stage 1 3,810 (3,597) [263) -
- Transfer to stape 2 (2,412 983} 2,423,612 {10,629} -
= Transfar i stage 3 - (500,066} 500,066 -
New financial assets ariginated or purchased 3,882,153 - - 2,882,153
Financlal assets that hava been derecognized (2,615,269 [111,203) [13,674) {2,740,145)
Dther changes (83) 3,148 73,801 76,956
Gross carryTng amount as at

31 Decembsr 2020 o ?,30£R\S 2.053,227 959,900 10,319,112
Changes in the gross carrying amount
- Transfer to stage 1 554,143 1552,208]) (1935} -
- Transfer to stage 2 [ 260,301} 523,739 {233,438} -
- Transfer to stage 3 - {741,806} 741,806 -
New financial assets ariginated or purchased 5,815,354 . - 5,819,354
Financial assats that have heen derecognised {2,693,345) (268,308} {70,758) 3,032,411)
Write-affs - (226) {226}
Other changes - {3,155} {46,068) [43,223)
Gross carrying amount as at

31 December 2021 10,695,836 1,011,489 1,349,281 13,056,E0&
Loss allowanca as at - o -

31 December 2021 |86,387) {18,110} {240,142) {344,595)
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Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total
Lass allowance - Loans and advances to
customers at amortized cost
Loss allewance as at 1 January 2020 £3,167 5402 138,496 196,565
Changes in the loss allowance
- Transfer to stage 1 488 {404} {84 -
- Transfer ta stage 2 {18,550} 19,038 {2,488) -
- Transfer to stage 3 {3,583) 3,888 -
- Increases due to change in credlt risk 18,158 40,308 86,443 145,40%
- Dacreases due to change in eredit risk {304) (1,177 - 1,481}
New financial assets originated or purchased 22,948 - - 22,948
Finantial assets that have been derecognized {13,805) (5,627} {62,423} {82,855}
Foreign exchange and other movements 396 853 37,178 38377
Loss allowance as at —
31 December 2020 64,498 53,605 200,350 319,063
Changes in the lass allowance
- Transfer to stage £ 21575 (21,008) {566}
- Transfer to stage 2 (2.020) 7807 {5,787}
- Transfer 1o stage 3 - 117,146} 17,146 -
- Increases due to change |n credit risk . 10,882 42,228 53,110
- Decreases due to change in credit risk 118,402) {2,927 - {21,329)
Write-offs . - 13) 3
New financial assets originated or purchased 48,900 - - 43,900
Financlal assets that have been derecognized {28, 118} {13,101) (23,943) (65,162}
Foreign exchange aﬂ:thﬂr movetents 1861 1} 10,107 10,020
Loss allowance as at
31 December 2021 85,347 15,110 244,142 344,539
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The analysis of changes of the loss allowance on loans 1o customers is presented in the tables below:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifatime ECL Lietlme ECL Total

Lass allowance — Loans to corporates
Loss allowance as at 1 January 2020 37,440 2234 90,671 130,345
Changes in the loss allowance
- Transfer to stage 2 (12,851} 15,321 {24704 -
- Transfer to stage 3 f9o7] g7 -
- Increases due to change in credit risk 9,775 2,937 11,318 24,090
- Detreases due to change in credit risk - {1,173} . [1,173)
- Write-offs - - - -
Mew finantial assats originated ar purchased 2,641 - - 3641
Financizl assets that have been derscognized (8,903} [3,428) {15,564) (27.895)
Foreign exchange and other movements ABRS 619 26,905 28,009
Loss allowance as at

31 Decemhber 2020 34,587 15,573 111,857 162,017
Changes In the loss allowance
- Transfer to stage 1 5,613 {5,618) - -
- Transfer to stage 2 {2} 235 (232} -
- Transfer to stage 2 - [B.793) 5,793 -
- Increases due to change in credi risk - 1,546 19,897 21443
- Decreases due ta change in credit risk (3,884) (233 - §4,121)
Write-nffs - - - u
Mew financial assets originated or purchased 29,462 - - 29,452
Financial assets that have been derecognized {11,329) {3,303} {2,668} {17,298)
Foreign exchange and other movements {83) - 8,237 8,154
Lass allowance as at - T

31 Decemnbar 2021 54,365 1407 143,885 199,657
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Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-manth ECL Lifetima ECL Lifetime ECL Total

Loss allowance - Loans to SME
Loss allowsance 3¢ at 1 Janwary 2020 8402 1,595 22,553 32,851
Changes inthe loss allowance
- Transfer to stage 1 335 [335) - -
- Transfer to stage 2 12,942} 2,942 - -
- Transfer to stage 3 (1,519) 1519 -
- Ingreases due to change in credit risk A74 30,965 16,262 48,101
- Decreases due to change in credit risk {304} - - 1304}
New financial assets ariglnated or purchased 5,257 - - 5,257
Financial assets that have been derecognized 11,837} (2,392) (10,044) [14,273)
Foreign exchange and other movemants - {89} 234 4,336 4,481
Loss allowance as at

31 December 2020 10,0985 31,991 34,626 76,213
Changes in the loss allowance
- Transfer to stage 1 14,552 {14,592} - -
- Transfer to stage 2 {29] 3,475 [3.450) -
- Transfer to stage 3 - {6,153} 6,153 -
- Increases due ta change in credit risk - 819 8,317 9,136
- Decreases due to change in credit risk 113,380) {1,821} - (15,201}
New financial assets originated or purchased 6,854 - - 6,854
Financial assets that have been derecognized (8,126) [7.683) {8,880) (24,689)
Foreign exchange and other movemants (3 {1} 361 397
Loss allowance as at

31 December 2021 10,008 5,333 37,127 52,670
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Stape 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total
Loss allowance — Mortgage Loans
Loss allowance a5 at 1 January 2020 2,907 234 8,334 11,475
Changes In the loss allowance
- Transfer to stage 2 {260} 260 - -
- Transfer to stage 3 . [372) 372 -
- Increases due to change in credit risk 3,630 5,151 11,031 19,812
- Becreases due to change in credit risk - - - -
MNew financial assets originated or purchased 2,097 - - ina?
Financial assets that have been derecognized {1,184} (122} {5,414) {6,720}
Foreign exchange and other movements 1 - 2,856 2,857
Loss allowance as at

31 Decemnber 2020 E1%1 5151 17,179 30,521
Changes in the loss allowanca
- Transfer to stage 1 555 [555) - -
- Transfer to stage 2 {1,264} 3321 {1,957) -
- Transfer to stage 3 - 3,128} 3,128 -
- Inereases due to change in credit risk - 74563 6,392 13,855
- Decreases due to change in credit risk (475} [784) - {1,259}
MNew financial assets ariginated ot purchased 5,192 - - 5,192
Financia! assets that have been derecognited {2,407) (1,518} {6,002) {10,017}
Foreign exchange and other movements - - {31) 121)
Loss allowance as at
31 Decemnber 2021 9,752 9,850 18,619 38,261
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Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Tatal
Loss allowance — Consumer Loans
Lass allpwance as at 1 January 2020 1,390 255 2,607 4,202
Changes In the loss allowance
- Transfer to stage 2 [158) 158 -
- Transtar to stage 3 - 1287} 287 -
- Increases due to change in credit risk 1,693 924 14,089 16,706
New financial assets originated or purchased 4,806 - - 4,806
Financial assats that have been derecognized (437} (402} {3,790) {1,625)
Foreign exchange and other movements - - - 1,330 1,330
Loss allowance 25 at
31 December 2020 7,294 688 14,523 21,505
Changes in the loss allowance
- Transfer to stage 1 626 {174} [452) -
- Transfer to stage 2 (260 375 115}
- Transfer to stage 2 - {482} 482 -
- Increases due to change in credit risk - 543 3,657 4,200
- Decreases due to change in credit risk [558) (7 - |28}
Write-offs - - i (3)
New financial assets originated or purchased 5,149 - - 6,145
Financizl assets that have been derecopnized (5,022} {435) {4,380} {9,837}
Foreign exchange and other movements - - 18% — 185
Loss allowance as at
31 December 2021 8,229 445 13,837 22,571
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021
{in thousonds of Kyrgyz Som)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifatima ECL Total
Loss allowance — Credit cards
Loss allowance as at 1 lanuary 2020 2,628 643 14,331 17,602
Changes In the loss allowance
- Transfer to stage 1 153 {70} (23] -
- Transfer to stage 2 [3a0) 358 (18]
- Transfer to stage 3 - (7104 710 -
- Ingcreases due to change in credit risk 2,187 768 33,748 38,701
- Dacraases due to change In credit risk - [4) - {4
MNew financial assets originatad or purchased 1,146 - - 1,146
Financial assats that have heen derecognized {1,444) {283} {27,611] {29,338)
Fareign exchange and other movements . - 1,700 1,700
Loss allowance as at o
31 December 2020 4,330 702 22,375 27,807
Changes in the loss allowance
- Transfer to stage 1 184 170} [114)
- Transfer to stage 2 (469} 501 (32) -
- Transfer to stage 3 - {590]) 590 -
- Increases dus to change in cradit risk - 511 3,965 4,476
- Decreases due to change In credit risk (101} {19} - (120}
Mew financial 2ssets originated or purchased 1,243 - - 1,343
Financial assets that have been derecognized {1,234} {162} {1,925§ {3,321)
Foreigh exchange and other movements = = 1,355 1,335
Loss allowance as at o
31 December 2021 2,953 873 26,614 311,450

The tables below provides an analysis of the gross carrying amount of loans and advances to customers

by past due status.
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Notes ta the financial statements {continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021
{in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Analysis by credit quality of loans to corporate customers outstanding as at 31 December 2021 is

as follows:
Provision

Provision for expacted
Loans to Corporates for expectad credit lnsses to
as at 31 Decemnber 2021 fiross lgans credit losses Net loans Eross Iuansl
Collectively assessed
Mot past due 1,999,377 {35.414) 1,963,963 1.E%
Overdue;
Lip to 20 days 177,109 (3,509} 173,600 2.0%
21 1o 90 days 140 1821 SE 58.6%
9110 180 days 5.B37 (5971 5,040 10.6%
180 to 360 days 11,145 {3,315} 7,830 29.7%
over 360 days 137,771 (109.676) 28,085 79.6%
Total collectively assessed loans 2,331,179 {152,593} 2,178,586 6.5%
Individually assessed
Mot past due 5,552,5( {26,156] 5,526,346 0.5%
Owverdue:
up to 30 days 1,168,808 (7,314} 1,161,534 0.6%
31 to B0 days 99,562 - 390,562 0064
over 380 days 14,064 (13,594) 470 96.7%
Total individually assessed loans 7,155,036 [47,064) 7087 572 1.7%
Totzl loans to Corporates 9,466,215 {199.657) 9,266,558 2.1%
Analysis by credit quality of loans to corporate customers outstanding as at 31 December 2020 is
as fallows:

Provislon

Prowision for expected
Loans te Corparates for expected credit bosses to
as at 31 Decemnber 2020 Gross loans credlt losses Net loans gross loans
Collectively assessed
Not past due 3,041,848 {20,597} 3,021,251 0.7%
Owerdue:
up to 20 days g1,105 117,725) 33,380 34.7%
21 to 50 days 7,057 {1,182} 5,355 16.8%
180 to 360 days 3,844 (1,124} 2,720 29.2%
over 260 days 57,844 144,526) 22,318 65,69
Total collectively assessed Inans 3,171,678 {8%,154) 3,086,524 2.9%
Individually assessed
Mot past dus 3,308,007 121,222} 3,286,785 0.6%
Overdue:
up o 30 days 122,860 - 122,860 0.0%
31 to 90 days 805, 298 {2,920} B02,378 0.4%
91 to 180 days 150,220 - 190,240 0.0%
over 360 days 532,721 {52,721} - 100%
Total individually assessed [cans 4,479,126 {76,263) 4,402,253 1.7%

Tatal loans to Corporates 7,650,804 {162,BE7) 7,488,787 2.1%
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021
{in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Analysis by credit quality of loans to small and medium businesses as at 31 December 2021 is presented

as follows:
Provision
Pravision far expectad
Loans to SME for expected credit losses ta
as at 31 Decembar 2021 Gross loans credit losses Net |aans gross loans
Collectively assassed
Not past due 1,426,153 12,399} 1,412,754 9%
Overdue:
upto 30 days 9,553 1143) 9,370 1.9%
31 to 90 days 12,687 {2.8086) 3,881 22.1%
91 to 180 days 47,303 18,921) 358,382 13.9%
180 ro 360 days 5716 12,114) 3.602 3I70%
over 360 days 42,130 (25,247) 16,883 59.9%%
Total loans to SME 1,543,542 (52,670) 1,490,872 3.4%

Analysis by credit quality of loans to small and medium businesses as at 31 December 2020 is presented

as follows:
Provision

Prowision for expected
Leans to SME for expected credlt Josses to
as at 31 December 2020 Gross lgans credit losses Net loans gross loans
Callectively assessed
Not past due 1,017,000 {33,008) 983,592 324
Overdue;
up to 30 days 8,287 {B0B) 7,48) 8 7%
31t 20 days 85,626 {10,547) 55,079 16.1%
31 to 180 days 28,117 15.811) 22,306 20.7%
180 vo 360 days 17,575 {4,397) 12,578 27.8%
over 360 days 32,762 {21,044) 11,718 64.2%
Tota loans to SME 1,169,767 (76.:213) 1,093,554 6.5%
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Notes to the financial statements {continued}
for the year ended 31 December 2021
{in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Analysis by credit quality of mortgage loans as at 31 December 2021 is presented as follows:

Provision
Provislon for expected
for expected credft losses ta
Mortgage loans a5 at 31 her 2021 Gross loans credit [osses Net loans gross loans
Collectively assessed
Wot past due 851,924 {16,276} 845,548 1.9%
Overdue:
upte 30 days 27,810 2,326) 24,884 10.5%
31to 90 days 27377 {5,220) 22,157 19.1%
91 to 180 days 4,573 11,106} 3467 24.2%
180 ta 360 days 14,918 {5.081) 9,837 24.1%
over 380 days 13,900 (7.652) L7438 57.1%
Total mortgage loans 950,002 {38,251) 911,741 4.0%
Analysis by credit guality of mortgage foans as at 31 December 2020 is presented as follows:
Provision
Provisian for axpected
for expected credit losses to
Mortgage loans as at 31 December 2020 Gross loans credit losses Net loans pross loans
Collectivety assassed
Not past due 637,069 (13,613) 623,456 2.1%
Overdus:
up to 30 days 25,572 {3,035) 22,537 11.9%
31to 90 days 12,817 (2.843) 10,074 22.0%
91 1o 180 days 7,386 12,390} 4,936 32.4%
1840 to 260 days 7579 12,363} 5216 31.3%
over 350 days 12,638 16,277) 6,361 49, 7%
Total mortgage loans 703,161 {30,521} 672,640 4.3%
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021
{in thousonds of Kyrayz Som)

Analysis by credit quality of consumer loans as at 31 December 2021 is presented as follows:

Provisfon
Provision for expected
for expected credit losses to
[ loans as at 31 Decembear 2021 Gross laans credit losses Net loans grass loans
Collectively assessed
Not past due §14,785 {9,714) 805,071 1.2%
Overdue:
up ta 30 days 17,999 {1,111) 16,888 B.2%
31 to %0 days 4,884 {965) 3,919 19.8%
91 to 180 days 1,419 {392) 1,027 27.6%
180 to 260 days 1,526 {718) 810 46.9%
over 360 days 10,827 (9.673) 1,154 A9 2%
Total laang 851,440 {22,571} 828,850 2.7%
Analysis by credit quality of consumer loans as at 31 December 2020 is presented as follows:
Prowvision
Provision for expected
for axpactad aredit losses to
¢ lgans as at 31 December 2020 Gross loans credit losses Met loans gross loans
Collectively assessed
Not past due 548,412 (8,100) 540,312 15%
Overdue:
up 1o 30 days 28,511 16,715) 22,196 23,2%
3110 90 days 4,179 {642) 3,336 15.4%
91 10 180 days 5,240 [1,643) 3,597 31.4%
180 1o 360 days 4 666 [2,296) 237 44.2%
over 360 days 3,257 {3,108) 149 B34%

Total consumer loans 594,665 {22,505) 572,160 3.8%
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Naotes to the financial statements {continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021
{in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Analysis by credit quality of credit cards loans as at 31 December 2021 is presented as faliows:

Provisian
Provision for expected
for expected credit losses to
Credit cards as at 31 Dacember 2021 Gross laans redit losses Met loans gross loans
Collectively assessed
Mot past due 177,830 {2,779 174,051 2.1%
Overdus:
up to 30 days 15221 11,197] 14,024 7.89%
31 t0 90 days 11,431 11,148) 10283 10.0%
91 to 180 days 4,616 {1,074) 3,542 23.3%
180 1o 350 days 6,740 {2,21%) 4,521 32.59%
over 260 days 29,568 122,023) 7546 14.5%
Total credit cards 245,407 (31,33) 213,967 12.8%
Analysis by credit quality of credit cards loans as at 31 December 2020 is presented as follows:
Provision
Provision for expected
for expected credit losses to
Credit cards as at 31 December 2020 Gross loans crodit losses Met loans gross Joans
Collectively assessed
Mot past due 141,473 [4,141) 137,332 2.0%
Cverdus:
up 1o 30 days 13,029 (1,077) 11,952 B.3%
31 tp 90 days 7154 (702} 6,432 9.8%
91 to 180 days 5,241 (1,239 4,002 236%
180 to 360 days 11,826 [2,863) 2023 32.5%
cver 380 days 21,892 {16,785) 5,107 TEIH
Total credit cards 200,715 (27,807} 172,908 13.49%
Collateral

The amount and type of callateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the
counterparty, Guidelines are irnplemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and valuation
parameters,
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Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC

Motes to the financial statements {continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021
fin thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

. For securities lending and reverse repurchase transactions, cash or securities;
»  Forcommercial lending, charges over real estate properties, inventary;
. For retail lending, martgages over residential properties.

Management monitors the market value of collateral, requests additional collateral in accordance with
the underlying agreement, and monitors the market value of collateral obtained during its review
of the adequacy of the allowance for expected credit losses.

Re-appraisal of the collateral takes place if the last appraisal was made more than 12 months ago or if
abvious signs of collateral deterioration exists.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to cradit risk in the statement of financial pasition,
including derivatives. The maximum risk is presented without taking into account the impact of risk
reduction measures, such as the use of netting agreements and collateral agreements.

The maximurn exposure to credit risk is generally reflected in the carrying amounts of financial assets in
the statament of financial position and unrecognised contractual commitment amounts. Tha impact of

possible netting of assets and liabilities to reduce potential credit exposure is not significant.

The maximum exposure to credit risk from financial assets and credit related commitments is as follows:

Collateral pledged 31 Decernber

Maximum and guarantees 021

— BXpOSUTE obtained Net exposure

Cash equivalents* 10,007,018 - 10,007,018
Loans and advances to banks 3,512,926 - 3,512,926
Laans to customers 12,712,007 (12,098,237} 613,770
Imvestrment securities at amortized cost 210,431 - 210441
Dther financial assets 558,452 - 558,452
Total maximum exposure 27,000,834 (12,098,237} 14,902,597
Laan and credit lne commitments 3,554,595 - 3,554,595
Guarantees and letters of credit - 656,916 (625,911} - 31,005
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Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CISC
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2021
fin thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Collateral pledged

Maximum andg 1 ber 2020
= aXposure ohtained Net exposure
Cash equivalants* 8,227,601 - 3,227,601
Loans and advances to banks 3,805,105 - 3,805,105
Laans to customers 10,000,043 {9,542 B46) 457,203
Investrment securities at amortized cost 207148 - 202,148
Invesiment securities at F¥OC1 73,171 - 74,171
Other financial assets 186,250 - 186,250
Total maximum exposure 22,495,324 (3,542,846 12,352,478
Loan and credit line cammitments 2,141,169 - 2,141,169
Guarantess and letters of credit 508,249 {489,000) S,249

*Cash equivalents include nostro accounts and term deposit with NBKR, nostro accounts and term deposits with
other banks, Notes of the National Bank of the Kyrgyz Republic with original maturity of less than three months and
reverse repurchase agreements up to 3 months securities.

Collateral generally is not held against investments securities, and loans and advances to banks, except
when securities are held as part of reverse repurchase and securities borrowing activities.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial fizbilities are ¢ffset and the net amount prasented in the statement of
financial position when, and anly when, the Bark currently has a legaliy enforceable right to set off the
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously,

The Bank receivas and accepts collateral in the form of cash in respect of the following transactions:
+ loans to banks and other financial institutions and borrowers.

The table below shows financial assets and financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceahle master

netting arrangements and sirilar arrangements but do not meet the criteria for offsetting as at
31 December 2021:

Net financial Amounts that were not offset in
Total assats f the statement of finandal
recognized financial position Net Amourt
flnanclal Tiablities in
assets/  the staterment
flnanclal of financial Flnanclal Cash collateral
Financial Assets/Liabilities liabllities ~ position Instruments receved o
31 December 2021
Loans to Custorners 40,111 40,111 - (40,111} -
Total Financial Assets 49,111 40,111 - (40,111} -
Current accounts and Deposits 32,647 33,647 (40,111) - 16,464}
Total Financlal Liabilities 33,647 33,647 {40,111} - {6464}
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021
{in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

The table below shows financial assets and financial liabilities subject ta offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangements and similar arrangements but do not meet the criteria for offsetting as at
31 December 2020:

Net financial Amounts that were not offset In the
assets f statement of financial position Net Amount
Total financial
recognized Vabilities in the
financial assets statement of
{ financial financial Fnancial Cash collateral
Financial AssetsfLiabillties liahilitias positlon Instruments received =
31 December 2020
Loans to Customers 357,135 257,138 - {357,138} -
Total Financial Assats E 357,139 357,119 - [357,139] =
Current agccounts and -
Deposits 379,721 379,721 (357,129) = - 22,582
Total Financial Liabllities 379,721 379,721 (357,139) - 23,582

[d} Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its
financiat liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liguidity risk exists when
the maturities of assets and liabilities do not match. The matching and or controlled mismatching of the
maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities is fundamental ta liquidity management. It is unusual
for financial institutions ever to be completely matched since business transacted fs often of an uncertain
term and of different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but can also
increase the risk of losses.

The Bank maintains liquidity management with the objective of ensuring that funds wil! be avaitable at all
times to honor all cash flow obligations as they become due. The Investment and Treasury policy is a part
of Risk Management Policy, which is reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors.,

The Bank seeks to actively support a diversified and stable funding base comprising long-term and short-
term loans from other financial institutions, core corporate and retail customer deposits, accompanied by
diversified portfolios of highly liquid assets, in order to be able to respond quickly and smoathly to
unfareseen liquidity requirements.

The liquidity management policy requires:

L3 prejecting cash flows by major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary in
relation thereto maintaining a diverse range of funding sources

*  managing the concentration and profile of debts

+«  maintaining debt financing plans

= maintaining a portfolic of highly marketable assets that can easily be liguidated as protection
against any interruption to cash flow

»  maintaining liguidity and funding contingency plans

*  moenitoring liguidity ratios against regulatory requirements.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

{in thousands of Kyrgyz Som}

The Treasury Department receives inforrmation from business units regarding the liquidity profite of their
financial assets and liabilities and details of other projected cash flows arising from projected future
business. The Treasury Department then provides for an adequate portfolio of short-term liquid assets to
be maintained, largely made up of short-term liquid securities, lvans and advances to banks and other
inter-bank facilities, to ensure that sufficient lquidity is maintained within the Bank as a whole.

The follewing tables show the undiscountad cash flows on financial liabilities and credit-related
commitments on the basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity. The total gross outflow
disclosed in the tahles is the contractual, undiscounted cash flow on the financial liability or credit related
commitment, For issued financial guaraniee contracts, the maximum amount of the guarantee is
allorated to the zarliest period in which the guarantee can be called,

73



08

(15 KIS %Y (3 %97 %Pe 53355¢ 103 JO aFejUanad
€ se ded ALAIISLISS 15au85un 3A1E| NS
tOEELZ'T OFT'ERR'ST ZO'DOETT teT'LES' STE986°L #95°TETE dES AJAINSLAS J58I8IU1 BAE LN
POL LETST ¥asbEE BES'ZLGE BOE'EBLT TSEVBS'T GLLPER £95°T5T'L ded Ayamsuss sasaul
gsT'z68' IS PEE LPO'EZSE BO0E'ERLE YZI'969'T S{EVER (19Z°6EE"9) 4% ALIINDIN
SIE98V92 95L°L 64682 TSS'030°T TOYTEE'Z GIT'0EY TIE'£29ee SALLITAYIT TYIINYNIL TY1OL
WTRETT - - - 9Z'r8 - WETHTIT SER||IqE) FuLIEaq 15818u-uod (2101
LETTET - - - 092 '¥8 - LIG9Y salpgey Ao
EOR'PEITE - - - - - GO FETTT SIHWIDIS MY woay sisodap puE SN0 JUBIND
2IT'0OT'Y -1 7] 626'82 TSS'090°T TPELPE'Z &IT'0EY SO¥'SHE salug ey Bulieag 15U (B0l
2E'TES aaL's $I8'97 £ZEFOT Z0F0597 0/9'vZ LETE HESL SpUNY pasmolog Byio
0Z2'0SP'E - 502 PZT9SE OP6'986'T Grr'SO¥ 959'66T HELD SIBMWI0ISNT WO} SUSOHER PUB SIUROIIE JUSLINY
SPOLLT - - - - - SP0LLT pe Piueq o3 ang
QLY HLE ST 0ZETOY HI0'TSSE 5S8'EVE'E AL L0y SEF'TITT 05083291 S13ESY TYIDNVMIE TYLO0L
095°0P6'8 - 05 - EEOQET - aT0°05L'8 5195SE SulIeaq 1$aualu-uou (210
ISFRES - - = - - TSF'RES S12558 |BIDUBU] JBYID
ZPC0aT - €05 - EE0DET - - SHUEQ 01 SEIVEADE pLIE SUBDT
995'T6T'8 - . - - . 995" 161’8 5)us|eMNbS LYSED pue ysed
9TE'LEFAT OZE'20F L1S'TS5E GSR'EPSE E£6Y'ZER'E SEP'TITT - Nmo.wmmh 513558 AULIEAN 153U [0 ]
TEFOIZ - - ovZLL Trv'eT TIS'T0T e€T'L %SE'R 1500 PaAZIMDLLE JE SANLMIFS U] $IUILTISEAU
L00TTLTT 0ZE'TO¥ L17'097'E 6T9T4LE 669 FEL'T T0e'LS a5¥'SIT'T Wb LT SlaWroisng o] sued?
¥RETTE'E 00E'TE - TS5'E10T 7RI'E0TT [U-TA44 4 WiV P{UED O} SBILEADE [QUE FUBG]
PEO'ERT - - . - - PEI'EET'Y %ET0 seajeanba Lses pue ysey
TZ0T sJERh § sIEah § SHeIA £ Syuon 71 SLCLW £ WiLow T TR U LT CTEE )
A2GWS3A TE ueyl ow 03 £ weld o0 T woty 01 £ Wiy 01 T Wody LYY 855 afeiane pal-udiag
pUE pUEWIR]

SMO||0Y SB §| TZOF J9qUIad=g] TE JE 5B SIUDWNIISUI [BIFUBULY 1O SISAjELe AYLInyew aly)

fuwag zAB1AY fo spubsnoyl u)}
1202 19qWadadq T papua reak ayy 1o}
[panupuos) sfuawaless [eBuRUl Yl 03 SHION

IS jueg jeuonewiagu] ZAJIAY Jjwag



18

%95 %85 ®REE HEE HEE %12 sizise |myog yo 3fequasiad
e e deB Aynuyisuas jsa120 e mung
OZE'BEEEL 990'A6L'ET 9128596 SOE'ELLH SSZ'eaL's OTE'BEE'S deF AJIAlIsUBS 1S3I31UF BALE| NN
0Z2'BS6'ET PSLTIT 0SELET'Y TT6'FEE 0SD°ET SPETIL'2 OTERE6"S dedl Ryapusus 15a30(
£ES'08E'T 54291 IPEUET'Y TIG'v8E 95E°TST SFETIL'T {6L2°TTL'S) d¥S ALIDINTI
BSY'E0S'TZ 88T 1528 TZ6'65E'T ELY'PIT'E TSY'30F GEZ'D9S'ST SALIMEYIT TVIINTNI WLOL
15_....8%&" - - - £0£'29 - 0T0°LTT'8T 5231)rq enf FUEI] 153I3IU-UOU [BIOL
BFLZOT - - - £0L'78 - 200K SS[Ige]| Jal3o
BOE'GET BT - - - . - 896 98187 SIBWOIEND WI0JY SUS0dBD PUE SIUNOIIE JUBAINT
PL'EIE'D £88'T1 16Tk TZ6'65ET 996'T50'2 TSP'80F GZL'EEE SAIGRN Fuuean 5318 |ejoL
B8RS TR ERE'TT BED'8Y LEE'0BE SPZ'GSE e92'ap 99767 K0 SPUNY PRMOLI0Y JRLNG
SEOZ0E'E - £6T PES'6LE TZLTE9'T EBT'E9E FSE'G97 HEFY SIFOISTY Wiy $3I50dBpP PUB SJUNAIIE Jualng
Fiafa - . - - - LOT'ZT HZ0D jueq o3 #ng
16668802 LEQ'LT {E3'98T'F TETPPTT 6z0°99Z'T FEE'DLTE DIFLTE'TT SLATEY DNV TV.LOL
os¥iTL'e - 96K - £T0T0Z - 1Z6°STS'S s3255€ BUNIRAL 15049JUI-UGU [E10)
0ST'98T = - - = - 057981 513558 [EIIVEULY IR0
&05 10T - s o - £I0'10Z - - DUER 0} SIIUBAPE PLUE SUEY]
TL9°67E'D - . - . - 1i9'BIED s esnbs ysed pue YseD
95 TeTeT LE8'0ET rresT'r ZEA'PPZ'T 9T0'SOT 96E'DLT'E 6ES'TEED sjasse Fulaeaq 3saiaju) |ejog
TLTPE - - - - £FLET BTE'TY %59 13084 18 S30LAT35 Ul Susulsail)
2PTZ02 - - BPT'T0Z - - - TSR 1503 PEHIUCWE 38 5211NIS5 L SIUFLLIISDAL|
B#D'OD0 T LERWLT EST'Z60'Y BY THOT OBZ'EE9 TLLGEYT £250EH'T WITET $18la15M7 0] Sued
IB5"E09E - g85'88 - OELIEN'T 045 TRE'T TOEass weS'T Sjueq 4} SABURAPE fLIE sued]
Fiiwdrall - - . - TI8'6T 9BLTIY w530 slualeA|nha ysed pue yse
azoe siesh g sieak g sIEah | SYMOW 7T SUIUD E Hiuow 1 ajed
15qWa0sa TE LYY IO o) £ uaodg O3 T Woud 0} £ Wely 01 T Wiy ueyl $52| 5IDIE IMIBYS

pue puewuan  33E.BAE pal-ydiam

SMO|I0) SB §| DZOT 120W3I3Q TE I8 5B SIUIUINIISU] |BIOUBMY 1O} SISAleue AJUNIew ayL

{wros ZABAY fo spursnoys Ui}
TZ0OZ 13qWanag [£ papua Jeal ay} 1oy
{panuijuod) sJuaLagess |eIdLeUL) B3 03} S3J0N

J51) yueg [euoijeusaju] zAS1AY wag



Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CISC

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021
{in thousands of Kyrgyz Som}

In accordance with Kyrgyz legislation, individual depositors can withdraw their term depaosits at any time,
forfeiting in most of the cases the accrued interest. These deposits are classified in accordance with their
stated maturity dates,

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020 current liahilities of the Bank exceeded current assets by KGS
3,803,761 thousand and by KGS 2,799,478 thousand, respectively. Negative liguidity gap is mainly
attributable to balances of customers’ current accounts, which are included in amounts due in less than
one month in the liquidity disclosure, However, management believes that in spite of the available early
withdrawal option and the fact that substantial partion of custemers’ accounts are on dermand,
diversification of these customer accounts and deposits by number and type of depositors, and the
experience of the Bank indicates that these customers accounts provide a long-term and stable source of
funding.

The Bank also has committed lines of credit in amount of approximately KGS 478,300 thousand as
at 31 December 2021 that can be assessed to meet liquidity needs.

Hawever, managemant believes that in spite of this early withdrawal option and the fact that substantial
portion of customers accounts are on demand, diversification of these customer accounts and deposits
by number and type of depositars, and the past experience of the Bank indicates that these customers
accounts provide  leng-term and stable source of funding,

Management expects that the cash flows from certain financial assets and liabilities will be different from
their contractual terms because past experience indicates that cash flows will differ from contractual
terms.

Regular liquidity stress testing is conducted under a variety of scenarios covering both normal and more
severa market conditions. Based on stress testing results and historical data an diversified and stable
funding base, as well as portfolio of longer maturity highly liguid assets easily convertible to cash, such as
investment securities, loans and advances to banks, Management estimates that the Bank has sufficient
liguidity to cover negative liquidity gap up to 1 month, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Banks’s reputation.
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Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CISC
Notes to the financial statements {cantinued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021
{in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

(e} Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or inditect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with
the Bank’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than
credit, market and liquidity risks, such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and
generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the Bank’s

operations,

The Bank manages operational risk by establishing internal controls that management determines to be

necessary in each area of its operations.

[f} Country risk

Country risk is the risk of losses to the bank due to changes in economic, social conditions and ather
events in foreign countries owing to international lending, foreign investments and other trans-boundary

operations.

The ALCO exercises control over the risk in the legislative and regulatory arena and assesses its influence
on the Bank’s activity. This approach allows the Bank to minimize potential losses from investment

climate fluctuations in Kyrgyz Republic.

The geographical concentration of assets and [iabilities is set out below:

Othar Total
Other CIS non-0ECD 31 December
Kyrgyz Republic countries countries OQECD countries 2021
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 4,374,189 1,107,581 A8,823 5,834,257 12,384,660
Loans and advances to banks 190,033 - 255,082 3,067,811 31,512,926
Loans to custamars 12,711,954 - - 13 12,712,007
Investments in securities at
amortized cost 210431 - - - 210,431
Other financial assats 558,452 - - - 558,452
Total assets 18,045,10% 1,167,581 323,705 9,942 081 29,378,476
LIABILITIES
Due to banks 5,815 Bl 171,169 177,345
Current accounts and deposits from
customers 25,290,089 8,220 170,848 176,434 25,645,580
Other borrowed funds 164,670 30,192 - 337,585 532,447
Lease llablfities 170,532 - - - 170,532
Othar financial iabilities - 95,594 9,020 - 26,623 131,237
Total liabilities 25,726,700 47,493 170,845 711,811 26,656,850
Net position 7,681,591) 1,080,082 152,859 9,190,270 2,721,626
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Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC

Notes to the finzncial statements [continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021
{in thousends of Kyrgyz Som)

27.

Othar Total
Cther IS non-0e{h 31 Decernber
Kyrgyr Republic countries countries  CECO countries 220
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 4,817,005 966,304 7l 4,837,938 10,622,268
Loans and advances to banks 201,013 863,692 249,144 2,491,256 3,805,105
Loans to custamers 5,992,998 - 51 10,600,049
Investments in securities at
amortized cost 202,148 - - 202,148
Investmants in securlties at FYOC! 74,171 - 74,171
Other financlal assets 186,250 - — = 186,250
Total assets 15,431,485 1,829,995 249,215 7,329,235 24,885,991
LIABILITIES
Due to hanks 4,470 74 - 12,563 17,107
Current accounts and deposits from
Custamers 21,183,474 21,035 36,058 238,426 21,489,003
Other borrowed funds 238,631 40481 615,437 394,589
Lease liabilities 07,772 - - EErE]
Other fina nci;ﬂabiliﬂes 72,434 9,144 21,171 102,749
T_otaf liakilities 21,606,842 70,734 35058 887,597 22,601,231
Net position [6,125,357) 1,759,262 213,157 6,441,698 2,288,760

Capital management

The NBKR sets and monitors capital requirements for the Bank.

The Bank defines as capital those items defined by statutory regulation as capital for eredit institutions.
Under the current capital requirements set by the NBKR, banks have to maintain a ratio of total capital to
risk weighted assets {statutory capital ratio) above the prescribed minimum level of 12% and a ratio of
tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets above the prescribed minimum fevel of 6%. The Bank was in
compliance with the statutory capital ratios as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The following table shows the composition of the capital position calculated in accordance with the

requirements of the NBKR, as at 31 December;

Ratic for
capital
For Capital adequacy Minimum
Actual adequacy purposes  required ratio
Capital amounts and ratios - amount purposes % %
As at 31 December 2021
Total capital 3,600,453 3,380,749 14.46% 12
Tier 1 capital 3,600,452 2,804,381 11.96% B
As at 31 December 2020
Total capital 3,081,944 2,980,014 17.80% 12
Tier 1 capital 3,081,944 2,460,367 14.65% ]
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Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021
{in thousands of Kyrgyz Som}

28

The Bank is also subject to minimum capital adequacy requirements calculated in accordance with the
banking laws of the Kyrgyz Republic established by covenants under liabilities incurred by the Bank. The
Bank has complied with all externally imposed capital requirements as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Credit related commitments

The Bank has outstanding credit related commitments to extend laans. These credit related
commitments take the form of approved loans and credit card limits and overdraft facilities.

The Bank provides financial guarantees and letters of credit to guarantee the performance of customers
to third parties. These agreements have fixed limits and generally extend for a period of up to five years.
The Bank also provides guarantees by acting as settlement agent in securities borrowing and lending
transactions.

The Bank applies the same credit risk management policies and procedures when granting credit
commitments, financial guarantees and letters of credit as it does for granting loans to customers,

The contractual amounts of credit related commitments are set out in the following table by category.
The amounts reflected in the table for credit related commitments assume that amounts are fully
advanced.

31 December 31 December
- 2021 2020
Loan and credit line commitreans 3,554,595 2,141,169
Guarantees and letters of credit 656,916 508,249
Taotal contingznt llabilitles 4,211,511 2,649,418

The total outstanding contractual credit related commitments above do not necessarily represent future
cash requirements, as these credit related commitments may expire or terminata without being funded.
The majority of loan and credit line commitments do not represent an unconditional credit related
commitment by the Bank.

31 December
2021
Loan and credit line commitments Stage 1 Stage 2 Total
Gross amount 3,554,595 - 3,554,595
Loss allowance R  [1w38) 1910} {18,146}
Carrying amount [provision) (17.235) {310] {18,146)
31 December
. S— .
Loan and credit ling commitmeants Stage 1 Stage 2 Tatal
Gross amaunt 2,141,159 . 2,141,169
Loss allowance {6,005) L 16,042)
Carrying amount {provision] (6,005) |37 {6,082]
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Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2021
{in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

The following table shows reconciliations fram opening and closing balances of the foss allowance on
credit line commitments.

— - 31 Decernber 2021
Loan and cradit line commitmeants Stagel Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balance at 1 lanwary 6,005 37 - 6,042
Transfer to Stage 1 5 {5} - -
Transfer to Stage 2 (2,172} 2172 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 - (38} 38 -
et remeasurement of 1oss allowance 4,599 {1,256} [38) 8,305
New financial assets orlginated or purchased 2,623 - - 3.623
Foreign exchange and other movements 176 - . 176
Les allowance 17,236 910 - 18,146
— 31 Detember 2020

Loan and credit [Ine commitments Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balance at 1 January 2,947 - - 2,947
Transfer to Stage 2 (196} 196 - -
Net remaasurement of loss allowance 1,364 {159) - 1,205
New financial assets originated or purchased 1,707 - - 1,707
Foreign exchange and other movements 183 - - 183
Loss allowance 6,005 37 - 6,042

The amounts reflected in the table for guarantees and latters of credit represent the maximum
accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counterparties failed completely to
perform as contracted.

| | 31 December 2021
Guarantaes and letters of cradit Stage 1 Tatal
Gross amount 656,516 656,916
Loss allowance 13,367} 12,367
Carrylng amount (provision) (3.367) |3,367)
31 December 2020
Guarantees and letters of credit Stage 1 Total
GToss amount 508,249 508,249
Loss allowance - - {644) {add}
Carrying amount (provision) (644} 644}

The following table shows reconcliations from opening and closing balances of the loss allowance on
guarantees and letters of credit.

——— = 31 Decemnbar 2021
Guarantess and letters af credit Stage 1 Total
Balance at 1 January 544 Gad
Het rermeasurernent of loss allowance 1679 1679
MNew financial assets originated or purchased 1,031 1,031
_Foreign exchange and other movements o o 12 13
Lass allowance 3,367 1,367
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Notes to the finzncial statements {continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

{in thousands of Kyrgyz Som}
- S 31 December 2020
Guarantees and letters of eradit Stage L Stage 2 Tatal
Balance at 1 lanuary 1,615 - 1,615
Transfer to Stage 2 1] '3
Net remeasurement of loss allowance (1,144} (8} {1,150}
New financial assets eriginated ar purchased 108 - 108
Forelgn exchange and other movernents 71 - 7l
Lass allowance 644 . B4

29. Contingencies
Insurance

The insurance industry in the Kyrgyz Republic is in a developing state and many forms of insurance
protection common in other parts of the world are not yet generally available. The Bank does nat have
fuli coverage for its premises and eguipment, business interruption, or third party liability in respect of
property or environmental dlamage arising from accidents on its property or relating to operations. Until
the Bank obtains adequate insurance coverage, there is a risk that the loss or destruction of certain
assets could have a material adverse effect on operations and financial position.

Legof proceedings

From time to time and in the normal course of business, claims against the Bank may be received from
customers and counterparties. Management is of the opinion that no material unaccrued losses will be
incurred and accordingly no provision has been made in these financial statements.

Im fMay 2019, the Bank applied to the court to claim a loan debt amount of customer due to non-
payments. The Bank won the process in all three instances and the court satisfied the Bank’s ¢laim. In
lune 2020, a third party, who purchased pledged property, filed a lawsuit against the Bank in the amount
of KGS 78,727 thousand for compensation of material and moral damage caused by restrictions to use
this property and perform any actions in relation to it. The Bank’s lawyers have advised that the plaintiff
has no legal ground to claim any compensation because arrest, which is the reasan of ¢laim, was interim
measure and had been imposed by the court within Bank’s claim of loan debt collection. The court
process related to the claim of a third party is at initial stage in first court instance. The Bank’s lawyers
have advised that they do not consider that the claim has merit, and they have recommended that it be
contested. No provision has been made in these financial statements as the Bank's managerment does
not consider that there is any probakile loss,

Taxation

The taxation system in Kyrgyzstan is relatively new and is characterised by frequent changes in
legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions, which are often untlear, contradictory and
subject to varying interpratation by different tax authorities. Taxes are subject to review and
investigation by a number of authorities, which have the authority to impose severe fines, penalties and
interest charges. A tax year remains open for review by the tax authorities during the three subseguent
calendar years; however, under certain circumstances a tax year may remain open till six calendar years.

&8



Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CISC

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021
fin thousonds of Kyrgyz Som)

30.

These circumstances may create tax risks in Kyrgyzstan that are substantially more significant than in
other countries. Management believes that it has provided adequately for tax liabilities based an its
interpretations of applicable Kyrgyz tax legislation, official pronouncements of court decisions. Howevar,
the interpretations of the relevant autharities could differ and the effect on financial position of the
Bank, if the authorities ware successful in enforcing their interpretations, could be significant,

Pensions ond retirement plons

In accordance with the laws and regulations of the Kyrgyz Republic, employees have rights for State
Pension Provisions. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Bank was not liable for any supplementary
pensions, post-retirement health care, insurance benefits, or retirement indemnitigs to its current ar
former employees,

Related party transactions

Related parties or transactions with related parties are assessed in accordance with IAS 24 “Related Party
Disclosures”. Related parties may enter into transactions which unrelated parties might not. Transactions
between related parties are generally effected on the same terms, conditions and amounts as
transactions between unrelated parties.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 the Bank had transactions with Management and
other related parties including entities under comman control: Demir Halk Bank {the Netharlands), Pozitif
Bank {Turkey), C-Bilisim {Turkey}, HCBG Holding B.V. {Netherlands), C-Technology LLC {Kyrgyz Republic)
and C-Real Estate LLC [Kyrgyz Republic).
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021
{in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

The outstanding balances of transactions with related parties are as follows:

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Total category Total category
as per the financial as per the financial
Related party statements Related party statements
bal capti balances caplion
Cash and cash equivalents
- other ralated parties 2,532 12,385,218 3,283 10,623,036
Allowance for expacted credit losses on
cash and cash equivalents
- other refated parties [67) (558} {64} (768}
Loans to customers
- key management persanne| of the entity
or its parent 11,880 13,056,608 11,874 10,319,112
Allowancs for expected credit losses
on loans to customers
- key management personnel of the entity
orits parant (85} [344,599} {82} {319,053]
Right of use assats
- other related partles 3,503 167,320 10,530 72,448
Other assets
- ather ralated partles 16,836 938,349 23,153 571,167
Allowance for expected credit losses
on other assets {1,710) (£2,480) - {12,006)
Current accounts and depasits from
{ustomers 43,433 25,645,585 35,834 21,439,003
- the parent 638 - e -
- key management personnel of the entity
ar its parent 29,25% - 33,702
- other related parties 13,286 - 1,36
Lease liabilities
- other ralated parties 9,796 170,532 24,498 97,773
Other liabilitles
- other related parties 1,907 270,375 1,292 171,879

The loans issued include mortgage loans and credit cards, all are in Kyrgyz Som, and loans are repayahle
by 2027. Loans issued to related parties are secured by real estate property.
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The remuneration of Board of Directars and Bank's management was as follows:

Kay management personnal
tompensation;
- short-term empfoyee benefits

31 December 2020

31 Deoern_her 21
Total categary
as par
the flnandial
Related party s Related party
transactions caption transactions
111,577 672,545 109,383

Total category
as per

the financlal
statements
capl.ian_

580,638

Included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 are the following amounts which were racegnised in transactions with

related parties:

Interest income

- key management personnal
of the entity or its parent

- other related parties

Interest expense

- key management personnel of
the entity or its parent

- ather related parties

Allowance for expected credlt losses

an laans to customers
- key management personnel of
the gntity or its parent
- ather related parties

Fee and commission expense
- other related parties

[Provision}frecovery of other reserves

- other related parties

Other operating expanses
- the parent
- other related partias

31 Dacember 2021

Related party
tranzactions

1,382

1,384

{1,982}
u,gs:-n
{2)
{2)

{53}

(1,710}

46,726}
(4,667}
142,059]

Tatal category
as per

the financial
statements
caption

1372971

{324,922}

(16,666)

(385,086)

10,228

(552,335)

31 December 2020 -
Total category
as per
the finandial
Ralated party statements
transactions caplion
1,259 1,265,971

1,25%
(2,550 {330,808)

{132}
[3,418) -
424 (67,5959}
[ELT -
965 -
[336) (292 325)
- 130,659}
(30,942} {449,996}
{4,147} -
(26,795) -
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31. Fair value of financial instruments
{a} Accountlng classifications and fair values

The estimates of fair value are intended to approximate the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measuremant
date. However, given the uncertainties and the use of subjective judgment, the fair value should not be
interpreted as being realisable in an immediate sale of the assets or settlement of liabilities.

The estimated fair values of most financial assets and fiabilities are calculated using discounted cash flow
techniques based on estimated future cash flows and discount rates far similar instruments at the
reporting date,

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, estimated fair values of all financial instruments approximate their
carrying values as majority of these financial instruments were issued at market prices and the interest
rates on these type of financial instruments did not change significantly in the market from the
ariginaticn dates of the instruments.

{b} Fair value hierarchy

Fair value of the Bank's financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
Some of the Bank's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period.

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements:

e Level 1. quoted market price {unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.

¢« Level 2:inputs other than quotes prices included within Level 1 that are abservable elther directly
li.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices}. This category includes instruments valued
using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quated prices for similar
instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques where all
significant inputs are directly er indirectly cbservable from market data.

*  Level 3:inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments where the valuation
technigue includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a
significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued
based on gquoted prices for similar instruments where significant unabservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflact differences between the instruments.

The fair value of financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive incorme has been
determinad by using market observable inputs (Level 2},

The Bank’s valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, comparisen
to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist and ather valuation models. Assumptions
and inputs used in valuatien technigques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads
and other premia used in estimating discount rates.
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The objective of valuation technigues is to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price that
would be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

Except as detailed in the following table, the management considers that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial statements approximate their fair
values.

31 December 2021 31 Decembear 2020
Carrying valus Fair value Carrying value Falr value
Loans to customers 12,712,007 12,384,555 10,000,045 9,671,700
Currant accounts and deposits from customers 25,645,539 25,639,464 21,485,603 21,503,848
31 December 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Lovel 3 Total
Loans i customers - 12,304 555 - 12,394 555
Current aecounts and deposits fram customers - 25,639,464 - 23,633,454
- 31 December 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 Total
Loans to customers - 9,671,700 - 3,671,700
Current accounts and deposits fror customers - 21,503,848 - 21,503,848

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level Z and level 3 categories
above have been determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on

a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects
the credit risk of counterparties. There were no reclassifications between levels in 2021,

Events after the reporting period

In February 2022, kyrgyz som depreciated significantly against major foreign currencies amid the external
geopaolitical situation. In order to reduce the negative impact of external factors on the Kyrgyz Republic
economy, the NBKR raised the base rate from 8.25% to 14.0% per annum, and interventions an the
currency market were performed to support kyrgyz som exchange rate against foreign currencies.
However, there is uncertainty exists related to the future developmant of tha geopolitical risks and their
impact on the economy of the Kyrgyz Republic.

Further, the Bank has correspondent accounts opened at certain Russian commercial banks, including
those, which were announced to be under various sanctions imposed by the United States, United
Kingdom, the Eurcpean Union, joined by several gther countries. There have been also announcements
from public officials of the United States and the European Union that a number of Russian banks will be
removed from the Swift international payments system.
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The Bank's management has taken ¢ertain measurements in order to mitigate potential risks to the
business, results of operations, and financial perfermance associated with the current situation in the
market. The Bank conducted stress-testing and developed an actian plan, in order to timely respond to
the changas in the market, An action plan contains the following measures:

a)  Introduction of daily reporting and close monitoring of the money market situation for taking timely
necessary actions and responding to the changes in the money markat;

B} Incraase of interest rates for customers time deposits by 1%-3% in order to retain and increase
deposit base;

¢} restriction transactions and keep minimum amount of foreign currency on corraspondent accounts
in all Russian banks which are under sanctions and reduce balances by transferring US Dollars to the
correspondent accounts openad at other banks;

d)  Setting-up and testing alternative payment systems, which can be used instead of SWIFT for money
transfers from/to Russian banks.

Management of the Bank is monitoring developments in the economic and political situation and taking

measuras it considers necessary in order to support the sustainability and development of the Bank’s
business far the foreseeable future.
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